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Up to $3,625,572.80 in Series A-2 Preferred Stock at $0.80
Minimum Target Amount: $10,000.00

A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this
offering unless you can afford to lose your entire investment.

In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of
the issuer and the terms of the offering, including the merits and risks involved. These
securities have not been recommended or approved by any federal or state securities
commission or regulatory authority. Furthermore, these authorities have not passed
upon the accuracy or adequacy of this document.

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of any
securities offered or the terms of the offering, nor does it pass upon the accuracy or
completeness of any offering document or literature.

These securities are offered under an exemption from registration; however, the U.5.
Securities and Exchange Commission has not made an independent determination
that these securities are exempt from registration.



Company:

Company: BOXABL INC.

Address: 5345 E. N. Belt Road, North Las Vegas, NV 89115
State of Incorporation: NV

Date Incorporated: December 02, 2017

Terms:

Equity

Offering Minimum: $10,000.00 | 12,500 shares of Series A-2 Preferred Stock
Offering Maximum: $3,625,572.80 | 4,531,966 shares of Series A-2 Preferred Stock
Type of Security Offered: Series A-2 Preferred Stock

Purchase Price of Security Offered: $0.80

Minimum Investment Amount (per investor): $500.00

The Company and its Business

Company Overview
Overview

Boxabl Inc. ("Boxabl" or the "Company”) is on a mission to bring building construction
in line with modern manufacturing processes, creating a superior residential and
commercial building that could be completed in half the time for half the cost of
traditional construction.

The core product that we offer is the “Building Box", which consists of room modules
that ship to site at a low cost and are stacked and connected to build most any shape
and style of finished buildings. We are currently evaluating market demand, but
anticipate that available dimensions will be 20x20 ft., 20x30 ft., 20x40 ft., and 20x60 ft.
QOur first product available for sale is our Casita Box, an accessory dwelling unit
featuring a full-size kitchen, bathroom, and living area.

We believe there is significant market interest in our product based on receiving
reservations of interest from over 38,000 customers through our Room Module Order
Agreement, some of whom have placed small deposits to formalize their pre-order of
the Casita when production begins. We have also begun delivering on an order
received from ADS, Inc. for 156 Casitas. In order to meet our understanding of the
potential demand, we are undertaking this capital raise to secure raw materials ahead
of need, to fund additional buildout of our initial factory, and to accelerate
production.

Boxabl was first organized as a limited liability company in Nevada on December 2,
2017, and reorganized as a Nevada corporation on June 16, 2020. Our core technology
was invented by our Chief Executive Officer, Paolo Tiramani, business development
director, Galiano Tiramani, and our lead engineer, Kyle Denman. The technology is



owned by Build IP LLC, a Nevada limited liability company specially formed as a
holding company for the intellectual property. Build IP LLC is controlled by Paolo
Tiramani, and has provided an exclusive license to Boxabl.

Our Mission and Innovation

Over the past several hundred vears, little has changed in the construction industry.
Most buildings are built by hand, one at a time. Modern construction has not yet
adopted advantages of the assembly line, robotics, or economies of scale. Even in
housing developments with substantially similar homes, while components may be
purchased in bulk, the work still involves construction by hand, one at a time. To
compound this problem, labor shortages are rising, and new entries to this workforce
are slowing. These factors are all contributing to significant backlog of housing
demand and price increases that are putting affordable housing out of the reach of
common Americans.

One of the prime drivers of the limitations on construction is the ability to ship
finished product to a job site. At Boxabl, we realized that innovation in modular
construction would not be possible without innovation in shipping. Through our
license agreement with our affiliate Build IP, LLC, Boxabl’s patented shipping
technology allows us to serve large geographic areas from one Boxabl factory. With
this shipping technology, we believe that the location of our flagship factory in North
Las Vegas, Nevada will be able to produce products that can be delivered to anywhere
in the US, and even international markets.

Our innovations in shipping are only possible because of our unique methods for
constructing our building modules. Our “Building Box" system and Box design were
created specifically to maximize repeatability in manufacturing. In addition, our
reimagined manufacturing process is simplified and efficient. This is achieved in part,
by reducing the individual components in the build by approximately 80% compared
to traditional building, which requires stacks of lumber and thousands of nails.
Significantly fewer components results in significantly less labor costs during
manufacturing,

We believe the resulting product boasts many benefits over traditional construction
for the end user. Not only does the Boxabl solution reduce building costs and build
time compared to traditional home building, but we simultaneously improve upon
other metrics that can be used to evaluate building solutions, such as installation
speed, fire resistance, energy ratings, mold resistance, environmental impact, wind
ratings, flood resistance, pest resistance, impact resistance and much more.

Litigation

On November 19, 2021, a former employee filed a complaint against the company and
its executive officers and directors in the Eighth Judicial District Court of Clark
County, Nevada, claiming breach of contract and wrongful termination. The company
denies the merit of the allegations.



We know of no other existing or pending legal proceedings against us, nor are we
involved as a plaintiff in any proceeding or pending litigation. There are no
proceedings in which any of our directors, officers or any of their respective affiliates,
or any beneficial stockholder, is an adverse party or has a material interest adverse to
our interest.

Intellectual Property License

Boxabl entered into the exclusive license with Build IP, LLC on June 16, 2020, and
amended it in November 2021. Build IP, LLC is controlled by Boxabl’s founder and
CEOQ, Paolo Tiramani. The license will continue in perpetuity unless terminated by
written agreement of Boxabl and Build IP, LLC, or by reason of default for (1) failure to
pay, (2) failure to perform any material obligations under the license, or (3) insolvency
of either party. Pursuant to the license agreement, Boxabl will pay a license fee of 1%
of the net selling price generated from the sale of its Boxes to Build IP, LLC. Boxabl
has the right to sublicense any of the rights and obligations under the exclusive
license, which will facilitate our anticipated factory franchise business model.

Competitors and Industry
Market Opportunity

Stick framing, invented over 100 years ago, is still the most popular residential
building method. Stick framing means laborers build homes one at a time, by hand,
using simple tools. A slow, expensive and labor-intensive process that has failed to
adapt to modern manufacturing processes.

No mass production, no robotics, no economies of scale, no assembly line, and costs
that are dependent on the availability of construction labor, which has experienced
shortages in recent years. According to the Associated General Contractors of
America, 81% of construction firms have reported difficulty in filling salaried and
hourly craft positions.

Despite the labor issues, the construction market is still active. According to the US
Census Bureau, privately owned housing starts in January 2021 were a seasonally
adjusted annual rate of 1,580,000, which represents a 6.0% reduction from the
estimated housing starts in December 2020 of 1,680,000, and 2.3% below the January
2020 rate of 1,617,000. We anticipate the economic turmoil resulting from COVID-19
may result in some decreases in housing construction, that may be abating. For
instance, the US Census Bureau reported 1,881,000 seasonally adjusted building
permits in January 2021, which is 10.4% above the December 2020 estimate of
1,704,000, and 22.5 above the January 2020 rate of 1,536,000.

Changes in zoning laws designed to increase housing density and solve housing
affordability are allowing people around the country, and especially in California, to
build accessory dwelling units (“ADUs”) for use and rent. In the city of Los Angeles
alone, almost 5000 ADU permits were issued last year. This is a burgeoning market for
which the Boxabl product is well positioned.



While we believe ADUs are an easy way to enter the market, Boxabl is not limited to
small residential units. The Boxabl product can be used in a wide range of building
types — residential, commercial, high rise, multi family, apartment, disaster relief,
military, labor housing and more.

Competition
Our competition can be broken into the following categories:

@ Stick built: Traditional home building method, accounts for the majority of the
market. Raw materials are brought to site and built by hand into finished buildings.
This market is made up of many small builders. We think this group represents our
likely customer base, as we provide them with a better solution.

@® Manufactured: Manufactured homes are standardized homes built in a factory and
shipped to site. These homes are generally built to a lower standard called the nation
HUD code and attempt to come in at the lowest cost possible. The defining factor with
this product is that they are generally deemed personal property and not real property.
Only a few large companies dominate this category.

@ Modular: Modular homes are factory-built homes required to be built to the same
or higher building code standards of stick-built homes. These homes are generally
more customizable than a manufactured home.

@® Panelized systems: Wall panels with different levels of finish are built in a factory
and then assembled onsite, usually by those doing stick-built construction.

In addition, there are a few new and notable housing startups trying to address the
problems in the housing markets. We see startups such as Blockable, Katerra, Factory
08§, and Rad Urban, as direct competitors, but will also benefit from their efforts to
make innovative design and construction the new norm in homebuilding.

Current Stage and Roadmap
Our Products
The Boxabl Solution

The Boxabl product represents a new take on modular construction. A factory finished
room module system that can be quickly stacked and arranged on site, and that
provides the majority of the building envelope and functions. This allows builders to
dramatically reduce build time and costs while increasing quality and features.

The Boxabl product is a large, almost 20 ft. in length room that folds down to 8.5 ft.
wide for shipping, and still has sufficient space for factory installed kitchens,
bathrooms and more. Each unit is a separate Box. Our Boxes take the heavy lifting of a
building’s construction out of the field and moves it into the factory, where it
belongs.

Once the Boxes arrive at the jobsite, Boxes are assembled together in a plug-and-play



manner by builders who have been trained and certified by Boxabl to create a finished
home of almost any size and style. A typical Box can be assembled in one day. Speed,
quality, features and price of the Boxabl product are superior to traditional building
methods.

Shipping Solution

The first step in factory manufacturing of large buildings is creating a feasible
shipping solution. Our goal was to ship without the need for oversized loads.
Oversized loads have extra permitting, follow cars, police escorts, restricted routes
and other problems that increase cost dramatically. Our design achieves the largest
possible room that is able to fit into standard shipping dimensions, meeting highway,
sea and rail transportation requirements.

Smart Manufacturing

Boxabl Boxes are not built like traditional homes, they have been engineered with
mass production in mind. This redesign includes a significant reduction in the number
of components involved in the manufacturing process. Boxabl Boxes will be built with
a laminated panel technology instead of a standard stick frame construction. This
means each wall panel that Boxabl manufactures only consists of a few individual
components. A comparable traditional wall has thousands of individual components
and requires 3+ separate skilled trades to complete (e.g., framing, sheetrock, exterior
finish, etc.). Many raw materials in the Boxabl will be processed by off-the-shelf
computer numerical control (CNC) equipment. The use of CNC equipment will give us
a degree of automation right away, which we intend to expand to allow for the
manufacturing process to be more fully automated.

The System

Efficient factory environments thrive on repeatability. We can achieve the lowest cost
by building the same product over and over, leaving it to the final assembly to create
unique structures. The Boxabl factory can build our Boxes in different sizes, with
different floorplans, the builder can stack, arrange and dress the boxes however they
desire for a custom building.

Building Materials

Historically, wood has been used for building construction because it is convenient
and available. Wood burns, rots, molds, degrades, and generally has many
characteristics that you wouldn't want in a permanent building structure. Further, due
to warping, its dimensions are usually not accurate enough to make it compatible with
precision robotics. Our wall design doesn't use standard lumber framing, instead we
use a laminated panel technology that includes steel skin, expanded polystyrene (EPS)
foam, and concrete board. We are able to sources these materials from multiple
vendors, and are not reliant on any particular vendor. Unlike wood construction, our
panels are less likely to burn, rot, mold, attract bugs or degrade. They are also
compatible with automation, computer numerical control (CNC), and the factory



environment.

Our Customers

In 2019, Boxabl delivered the first prototype at the Builders Show in Las Vegas and
received an overwhelming response. Builders were ecstatic to see the development of
a solution to many issues they struggle with. We received the equivalent of 6,000,000+
sq. ft. of “reservations” from hundreds of professional builders. These reservations
were simply an indication of interest and we did not take any deposits; they are not a
guarantee of future revenues.

After the show, we ordered basic manufacturing equipment and continued to perfect
the system and address feedback we got from the builder community. We were invited
back to the 2020 show through a sponsorship with Professional Builder Magazine.
Once we decided our initial building product focus would be the ADU, we built three
more units for the show. In January 2020, we debuted the “Casita” at the Builders
Show and again received a high level of interest from potential customers. Rather than
just making available “reservations”, we began taking deposits for position on our
waitlist. As of December 30, 2021, we have received over 4,000 deposits from potential
customers of $100, 200, or $1,200 for over 4,400 Casitas, and in total, we have received
interest from more than 70,000 additional potential customers wishing to reserve their
place in line for when production of the Casita begins. As of December 30, 2021, we
have not delivered any Casitas to persons on the waitlist. While significantly below
the full sales price of the Casita, we believe a significant percentage of these deposits
for the 4,700 Casitas will result in actual orders, demonstrating the potential for
generating revenue immediately following our planned production facility being fully
operational.

Further, if each of the 70,000 potential customers, who have all agreed to our Room
Module Order Agreement (included as Exhibit 6.5), purchases a single Casita, that
extrapolates to potential revenue of more than $1 billion. While it is unlikely that we
will receive these orders or revenue from most of these potential customers, even the
ones who have placed deposits, it shows the excitement and interest in the Casita.
Conversion of even a small percentage of these potential customers will allow for full
production of our planned production facility.

We have delivered one Casita to a customer in Texas as part of a demonstration
project, but no revenues were recorded for that order and delivery.

Future Strategy

Boxabl intends to create a factory franchise business model. After our flagship factory
in Las Vegas is scaled up, we want to expand internationally by setting up franchisees
to build their own factories. We will use this first production style factory to identify
procedures, data, costs, raw materials, equipment, labor numbers and more to build a
blueprint for future factories.

We believe a franchise model would let us rapidly scale worldwide. Under this



scenario, Boxabl becomes a logistics company with franchisees constructing factories
around the world. We would supply franchisee with raw materials, custom equipment,
branding, proprietary components, quality control, and other services. As of August
2022, we have received interest from over 440 parties that would like to partner with
us as franchisees from 17 states and 25 countries. About 260 of these inquirers
indicated they have at least $5 million to spend on startup of these factories. To date,
we have not requested any payment from any of these parties as we feel it is
premature. We do not yet have controls or procedures for evaluating potential
franchisees, and will develop these procedures after evaluating the operations of our
starter factory.

The Team

Officers and Directors

Name: Paolo Tiramani
Paolo Tiramani's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Founder and Chief Executive Officer, Director
Dates of Service: December 02, 2017 - Present
Responsibilities: Oversee operations of the Company. Mr. Tiramani currently
receives salary compensation of $396,000 per vear for this role.

Name: Hamid Firooznia

Hamid Firooznia's current primary role is with Firooznia & Mekul Certified Public
Accountants, P.C.. Hamid Firooznia currently services 5 hours per week in their role
with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Director
Dates of Service: December 02, 2017 - Present
Responsibilities: Advisor and Member of the Board of Directors.

Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Employer: Firooznia & Mekul Certified Public Accountants, P.C.
Title: CPA
Dates of Service: March 22, 1984 - Present
Responsibilities: Provides support with taxes and financial statements.

Name: Galiano Tiramani



Galiano Tiramani's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

¢ Position: Business Development and Director
Dates of Service: December 02, 2017 - Present
Responsibilities: Oversees Business Development. Mr. Tiramani currently
receives salary compensation of $395,999.98 for this role.

Risk Factors

The SEC requires the company to identify risks that are specific to its business and its
financial condition. The company is still subject to all the same risks that all
companies in its business, and all companies in the economy, are exposed to. These
include risks relating to economic downturns, political and economic events and
technological developments (such as hacking and the ability to prevent hacking).
Additionally, early-stage companies are inherently more risky than more developed
companies. You should consider general risks as well as specific risks when deciding
whether to invest.

These are the risks that relate to the Company:

Our business projections are only projections

There can be no assurance that the Company will meet our projections. There can be
no assurance that the Company will be able to find sufficient demand for our product,
that people think it's a better option than a competing product, or that we will able to
provide the service at a level that allows the Company to make a profit and still attract
business.

Any valuation at this stage is difficult to assess

The valuation for the offering was established by the Company. Unlike listed
companies that are valued publicly through market-driven stock prices, the valuation
of private companies, especially startups, is difficult to assess and you may risk
overpaying for your investment.

Your investment could be illiquid for a long time

You should be prepared to hold this investment for several years or longer. For the 12
months following your investment there will be restrictions on how you can resell the
securities you receive. More importantly, there is no established market for these
securities and there may never be one. As a result, if vou decide to sell these securities
in the future, you may not be able to find a buyer. The Company may be acquired by
an existing player in the educational software development industry. However, that
may never happen or it may happen at a price that results in you losing money on this
investment.

Terms of subsequent financings may adversely impact your investment
We will likely need to engage in common equity, debt, or preferred stock financings in



the future, which may reduce the value of your investment in the Common Stock.
Interest on debt securities could increase costs and negatively impact operating
results. Preferred stock could be issued in series from time to time with such
designation, rights, preferences, and limitations as needed to raise capital. The terms
of preferred stock could be more advantageous to those investors than to the holders
of Common Stock. In addition, if we need to raise more equity capital from the sale of
Common Stock, institutional or other investors may negotiate terms that are likely to
be more favorable than the terms of your investment, and possibly a lower purchase
price per share.

Projections: Forward Looking Information

Any projections or forward looking statements regarding our anticipated financial or
operational performance are hypothetical and are based on management's best
estimate of the probable results of our operations and will not have been reviewed by
our independent accountants. These projections will be based on assumptions which
management believes are reasonable. Some assumptions invariably will not
materialize due to unanticipated events and circumstances beyond management's
control. Therefore, actual results of operations will vary from such projections, and
such variances may be material. Any projected results cannot be guaranteed.

The amount raised in this offering may include investments from company insiders or
immediate family members

Officers, directors, executives, and existing owners with a controlling stake in the
company (or their immediate family members) may make investments in this offering.
Any such investments will be included in the raised amount reflected on the campaign

page.

Minority Holder; Securities with No Voting Rights

The Series A-2 Preferred Stock that an investor is buying has no voting rights attached
to them. This means that you will have no rights in dictating on how the Company will
be run. You are trusting in management discretion in making good business decisions
that will grow your investments. Furthermore, in the event of a liquidation of our
company, you will only be paid out if there is any cash remaining after all of the
creditors of our company have been paid out.

You are trusting that management will make the best decision for the company
You are trusting in management discretion. You are buying securities as a minority
holder, and therefore must trust the management of the Company to make good
business decisions that grow vour investment.

This offering involves “rolling closings,” which may mean that earlier investors may
not have the benefit of information that later investors have.

Once we meet our target amount for this offering, we may request that StartEngine
instruct the escrow agent to disburse offering funds to us. At that point, investors
whose subscription agreements have been accepted will become our investors. All
early-stage companies are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, and it is not
uncommon for material changes to be made to the offering terms, or to companies’



businesses, plans or prospects, sometimes on short notice. When such changes
happen during the course of an offering, we must file an amended to our Form C with
the SEC, and investors whose subscriptions have not vet been accepted will have the
right to withdraw their subscriptions and get their money back. Investors whose
subscriptions have already been accepted, however, will already be our investors and
will have no such right.

Our new product could fail to achieve the sales projections we expected

Our growth projections are based on an assumption that with an increased advertising
and marketing budget our products will be able to gain traction in the marketplace at
a faster rate than our current products have. It is possible that our new products will
fail to gain market acceptance for any number of reasons. If the new products fail to
achieve significant sales and acceptance in the marketplace, this could materially and
adversely impact the value of your investment.

We are an early stage company and have not yet generated any profits

Boxabl was formed on December 2, 2017. Accordingly, the Company has a limited
history upon which an evaluation of its performance and future prospects can be
made. Our current and proposed operations are subject to all business risks associated
with new enterprises. These include likely fluctuations in operating results as the
Company reacts to developments in its market, managing its growth and the entry of
competitors into the market. We will only be able to pay dividends on any shares once
our directors determine that we are financially able to do so. Boxabl has incurred a net
loss and has had limited revenues generated since inception. There is no assurance
that we will be profitable in the next 3 years or generate sufficient revenues to pay
dividends to the holders of the shares.

We are an early stage company and have limited revenue and operating history

The Company has a short history, few customers, and effectively no revenue. If you
are investing in this company, it’s because you think that Boxabl's product is a good
idea, that the team will be able to successfully market, and sell the product or service,
that we can price them right and sell them to enough peoples so that the Company
will succeed. Further, we have never turned a profit and there is no assurance that we
will ever be profitable.

We have existing patents that we might not be able to protect properly

One of the Company's most valuable assets is its intellectual property. The technology
is owned by Build IP LLC, a Nevada limited liability company specially formed as a
holding company for the intellectual property. Build IP LLC is controlled by Paolo
Tiramani, and has provided an exclusive license to Boxabl. We believe one of the most
valuable components of the Company is our intellectual property portfolio. Due to the
value, competitors may misappropriate or violate the rights owned by the Company.
The Company intends to continue to protect its intellectual property portfolio from
such violations. It is important to note that unforeseeable costs associated with such
practices may invade the capital of the Company.

Our trademarks, copyrights and other intellectual property could be unenforceable or



ineffective

Intellectual property is a complex field of law in which few things are certain. It is
possible that competitors will be able to design around our intellectual property, find
prior art to invalidate it, or render the patents unenforceable through some other
mechanism. If competitors are able to bypass our trademark and copyright protection
without obtaining a sublicense, it is likely that the Company’s value will be materially
and adversely impacted. This could also impair the Company’s ability to compete in
the marketplace. Moreover, if our trademarks and copyrights are deemed
unenforceable, the Company will almost certainly lose any potential revenue it might
be able to raise by entering into sublicenses. This would cut off a significant potential
revenue stream for the Company.

The loss of one or more of our key personnel, or our failure to attract and retain other
highly qualified personnel in the future, could harm our business

To be successful, the Company requires capable people to run its day to day
operations. As the Company grows, it will need to attract and hire additional
employees in sales, marketing, design, development, operations, finance, legal,
human resources and other areas. Depending on the economic environment and the
Company’s performance, we may not be able to locate or attract qualified individuals
for such positions when we need them. We may also make hiring mistakes, which can
be costly in terms of resources spent in recruiting, hiring and investing in the
incorrect individual and in the time delay in locating the right employee fit. If we are
unable to attract, hire and retain the right talent or make too many hiring mistakes, it
is likely our business will suffer from not having the right employees in the right
positions at the right time. This would likely adversely impact the value of your
investment.

We have a limited operating history with a history of losses and we may not achieve or
maintain profitability in the future.

The company has operated at a loss since inception and historically relied on
contributions from its owners to meet its growth needs. Further we have only recently
begun to record revenue from the sale of Boxes, our sole intended product. We expect
to make significant future investments in order to develop and expand our business,
which we believe will result in additional capital expenses, marketing and general and
administrative expenses that will require raising funds in this and other securities
offerings to cover these additional costs until we are able to generate significant
revenue.

If we cannot raise sufficient funds, we will not succeed.

We are offering shares of our Non-Voting Series A-2 Preferred Stock to raise up to
approximately $3,625,572. Even if the maximum amount is raised, we are likely to
need additional funds in the future in order to continue to grow, and if we cannot raise
those funds for whatever reason, including reasons relating to the company itself or to
the broader economy, the company may not survive. If we raise a substantially lesser
amount than our aggregate goal of proceeds to the company, we will have to find
other sources of funding.



The company has realized significant operating losses to date and expects to incur
losses in the future.

The company has operated at a loss since inception, and these losses are likely to
continue. Boxabl’s net loss for 2020, as reflected in its audited financial statements,
was $1,162,792, and its net loss for 2019 was $707,547. As we increased activity in
2021, our net loss for the six-month period ended June 30, 2021 increased to
$2,110,815. Until the company achieves profitability, it will have to seek other sources
of capital in order to continue operations.

The company’s auditor has prepared its audit report on the basis of the company
continuing to operate as a going concermn.

The company’s auditor has issued a “going concern” opinion on the company’s
financial statements. The company incurred a net loss of $1,162,792 for year ended
December 31, 2020, and has limited revenues, which creates substantial doubt about
its ability to continue as a going concern.

Our future success is dependent on the continued service of our senior management
and in particular our Founder and Chief Executive Officer Paolo Tiramani.

Any loss of key members of our executive team could have a negative impact on our
ability to manage and grow our business effectively. This is particularly true of our
Founder and Chief Executive Officer Paolo Tiramani, who designed and patented our
core intellectual property. The experience, technical skills and commercial
relationships of our key personnel provide us with a competitive advantage,
particularly as we are building our brand recognition and reputation.

We may not be able to effectively manage our growth, and any failure to do so may
have an adverse effect on our business and operating results

We have received substantial interest in our Casita Boxes and will strive to meet that
demand. This will require significant scaling up of operations, including acquiring
additional facilities space, and skilled labor. To date, we have limited experience
manufacturing our products at a commercial scale. If we are unable to effectively
manage our scaling up in operations, we could face unanticipated slowdowns and
problems and costs that harm our ability to meet production demands.

Decreased demand in the housing industry would adversely affect our business.
Demand for new housing construction is tied to the broader economy and factors
outside the company’s control. Should factors such as the COVID-19 pandemic result
in continued loss of general economic activity, we could experience a slower growth in
demand for our Boxes.

If we do not protect our brand and reputation for quality and reliability, or if
consumers associate negative impressions of our brand, our business will be adversely
affected.

As a new entrant in the highly competitive home construction market, our ability to
successfully grow our business is highly dependent on the reputation we establish for
quality and reliability. To date, we have built a positive reputation based on our
demonstration products for trade shows and conferences. As we expand operations to



selling Boxes, we will need to deliver on the quality and reliability that is expected of
us. If potential customers create a negative association about our brand, whether
warranted or not, our business could be harmed.

We depend upon our patents and trademarks licensed from a related party. Any failure
to protect those intellectual property rights, or any claims that our technology
infringes upon the rights of others may adversely affect our competitive position and
brand equity.

Our future success depends significantly on the intellectual property created by our
founder and which is owned by a related entity, Build IP LLC. If Build IP LLC is unable
to protect that intellectual property from infringement, or if it is found to infringe on
others our business would be materially harmed as competitors could utilize our same
building and shipping designs.

We have recently outfitted our initial manufacturing facility to begin production as
the scale necessary to make the business viable.

A portion of the proceeds from this offering will be used to further outfit our initial
manufacturing space in the Las Vegas area for our Boxes and to refine the
manufacturing process. Our business relies on being able to produce our Boxes at
scale, which can only be done once we refined our manufacturing process for
specialization of functions. If we are not able to refine our processes to achieve
production at scale, our financial results may be negatively impacted.

Volatility in commodity prices and product shortages may adversely affect our gross
margins.

Volatility in commodity prices and product shortages may adversely affect our gross
margins. Our Boxes contain commodity-priced materials. Commodity prices and
supply levels affect our costs. For example, steel is a key material in our Casita. The
price of steel will vary based on the level of supply in the market, and demand from
other users. Any shortages could adversely affect our ability to produce our Boxes and
significantly raise our cost of their production. Further, our ability to pass on such
increases in costs in a timely manner depends on market conditions, and the inability
to pass along cost increases could result in lower gross margins.

We require additional capital in order to produce Casitas that have already been
ordered from the company

In December 2020, we received two purchase orders to deliver 156 Casitas, with the
first Casita due on October 18, 2021, and the final one due the week of April 11, 2022,
This delivery schedule has been revised by agreement between us and the purchaser to
reflect delays in raw materials impacting global supply chains. In order to meet that
delivery deadline we will be required to further outfit our manufacturing facility and
refine our production processes. If we are unable to meet the delivery deadline, we
may be required to repay amounts already paid under the purchase order, and the
company’s reputation may be harmed.

We will rely on third-party builders to construct our Boxes on site as well as we intend
to rely on third-party franchisees. The failure of those builders to properly construct



homes and franchisee manufacturers to properly manufacture Boxes could damage
our reputation, result in costly litigation and materially impact our ability to succeed.
We sell our Boxes to Boxabl trained and certified builders, who are then responsible
for on-site building and assembly. Purchasers can also order directly from us, and they
will need to engage their own builders. We may discover that builders are engaging in
improper construction practices, negatively impacting the reliability of our Boxes.
Further, we not only intend to manufacturer the Boxes at our own factories but also to
rely on third-party franchisees to manufacture our Boxes. To the extent that we do,
we cannot be certain that any such franchisees will act in a manner consistent with
our standards and requirements and produce Boxes in accordance with our quality
standards. We may discover that our franchisees do not end up operating their
franchises in accordance with our standards or applicable law. The occurrence of such
events by the builders or franchisees could result in liability to us, or reputational
damage.

If an unknown defect was detected in our Boxes or Box designs, our business would
suffer and we may not be able to stay in business.

In the ordinary course of our business, we could be subject to home warranty and
construction defect claims. Defect claims may arise a significant period of time after a
building with our Boxes has been completed. Although we maintain general liability
insurance that we believe is adequate and may be reimbursed for losses by
subcontractors that we engage to assemble our homes, an increase in the number of
warranty and construction defect claims could have a material adverse effect on our
results of operations. Furthermore, any design defect in our components may require
us to correct the defect in all of the projects sold up until that time. Depending on the
nature of the defect, we may not have the financial resources to do so and would not
be able to stay in business. Even a defect that is relatively minor could be extremely
costly to correct in every home and could impair our ability to operate profitably.

The housing industry is highly competitive and many of our competitors have greater
financial resources than we do. Increased competition may make it difficult for us to
operate and grow our business.

The housing industry is highly competitive and we compete with traditional custom
builders, manufactured and modular home builders, and other innovative entrants. In
addition, we compete with existing homes that are offered for sale, which can reduce
the interest in new construction. Many of our competitors have significantly greater
resources than we do, a greater ability to obtain financing and the ability to accept
more risk than we can prudently manage. If we are unable to compete effectively in
this environment, we may not be able to continue to operate our business or achieve
and maintain profitability.

Government regulations may cause project delay, increase our expenses, or increase
the costs to our customers which could have a negative impact on our operations

We are subject to state modular home building codes, and projects are subject to
permitting processes at the local level. If we encounter difficulties with obtaining
state modular home approvals, we could experience increased costs in obtaining those
approvals. Until state approvals are obtained, we would be limited in our ability to



access that state market. Further, modular home codes may change over time,
potentially increasing our costs, which we may not be able to pass on to customers,
negatively impact our sales and profitability.

Increases in the cost of raw materials, or supply disruptions, could have a material
adverse effect on our business.

Our raw materials consist of steel, foams, and plastics, which primarily are sourced
from, or dependent on materials sourced domestic vendors who may source their
material from overseas. The costs of these materials may increase due to increased
tariffs or shipping costs or reduced supply availability of these materials more
generally. Further, global or local natural disruptions, including the COVID-19
pandemic, may impact the supply chain, including limiting work in factories
producing the materials into useable forms or impacts on the supply chain.
Disruptions in supply could result in delays in our production line, delaying delivery of
products. Further, we may not be able to pass through any increased material costs to
our customers which could have a material adverse effect on our ability to achieve
profitability. To the extent that we are able to pass through increased costs, it may
lessen any competitive advantage that we have based on price.

The company has broad discretion in the use of proceeds in this Offering

The company has broad discretion on how to allocate the proceeds received as a result
of this Offering and may use the proceeds in ways that differ from the proposed uses
discussed in this offering document. If the company fails to spend the proceeds
effectively, its business and financial condition could be harmed and there may be the
need to seek additional financing sooner than expected.

Any valuation at this stage is difficult to assess.

The valuation for this offering was established by the company based on the best
estimates of management, and is not based on historical financial results. Unlike listed
companies that are valued publicly through market-driven stock prices, the valuation
of private companies, especially early stage companies, is difficult to assess and you
may risk overpaying for your investment.

We include projections of future plans and performance in this offering document.
Projections rely on the occurrence of stated assumptions and should not assumptions
not be correct or not occur, then the stated projections may be inaccurate.

We include projected timelines in our “Plan of Operations” and include projected cost
comparisons on our offering page. Those projections will only be achieved if the
assumptions they are based on are correct. There are many reasons why the
assumptions could be inaccurate, including customer acceptance, competition,
general economic conditions and our own inability to execute our plans. Potential
investors should take the assumptions in consideration when reading those
projections, and consider whether they think they are reasonable.

You will not have significant influence on the management of the company.
The day-to-day management, as well as big picture decisions will be made exclusively
by our executive officers and directors. You will have a very limited ability, if at all, to



vote on issues of company management and will not have the right or power to take
part in the management of the company and will not be represented on the board of
directors of the company. Accordingly, no person should purchase our stock unless he
or she is willing to entrust all aspects of management to our executive officers and
directors.

This investment is illiquid.

There is no currently established market for reselling these securities and the
company currently has no plans to list any of its shares on any over-the-counter
(OTC) or similar exchange. If you decide that you want to resell these securities in the
future, you may not be able to find a buyer. You should assume that you may not be
able to liguidate your investment for some time, or be able to pledge these shares as
collateral.

We expect to raise additional capital through equity and/or debt offerings to support
our working capital requirements and operating losses.

In order to fund future growth and development, we will likely need to raise additional
funds in the future through offering equity or debt that converts into equity, which
would dilute the ownership percentage of investors in this offering. See “Dilution.”
Furthermore, if we raise capital through debt, the holders of our debt would have
priority over holders of equity, including the Series Seed Preferred Stock, and we may
be required to accept terms that restrict our ability to incur more debt. We cannot
assure you that the necessary funds will be available on a timely basis, on favorable
terms, or at all, or that such funds if raised, would be sufficient. The level and timing
of future expenditures will depend on a number of factors, many of which are outside
our control. If we are not able to obtain additional capital on acceptable terms, or at
all, we may be forced to curtail or abandon our growth plans, which could adversely
impact our business, development, financial condition, operating results or prospects.

Investors will be immediately diluted following the conversion of outstanding
convertible notes.

During 2021, we have sold convertible promissory notes to investors pursuant to Rule
506(c) of Regulation D. These notes convert at a discount into the shares of the
company’s Series A-1 Preferred Stock. As a result of the conversion of these notes
following the closing of any sales in this offering, the equity position of investors will
be immediately diluted.

We may have offered securities in violation of the Securities Act of 1933, which could
give certain purchasers of our shares the right to seek refunds

On September 19, 2021, an article was published by the Las Vegas Review Journal
featuring an interview with the company’s CEQ, Paolo Tiramani. The article includes a
discussion of the fundraising efforts of the company, and does not include the legends
required by Rule 255(b) under Regulation A under the Securities Act of 1935, The
article is included as an exhibit to the offering statement of which this offering
document forms a part. While we believe the article is not an offering of securities, it
is possible that another party may consider the article to be an offer, and raise a claim
that the company violated Section 5 of the Securities Act of 1933 related to sales of



securities in this offering. Liability for violations of Section 5 of the Securities Act is
determined under Section 12(a)(1) of the Securities Act, which provides that any
person who violates Section 5 is liable to any purchaser, who may recover the
consideration paid, with interest. Section 13 of the Securities Act limits the time
period for recovery under such violation as one year after the violation upon which it
is based, which would be September 19, 2022—one vear from the publishing of the
article.

By executing the subscription agreement in this offering, investors will join as
Stockholders under our Stockholders Agreement.

The company has established a Stockholders Agreement between itself, Paolo
Tiramani, Galiano Tiramani, and each new stockholder to the company. The
agreement provides for among, other items, control of the directorships of the
company by Paolo Tiramani and Galiano Tiramani, and restrictions on transfer of the
securities in this offering. As such, this agreement places contractual restrictions on
the ability of investors to exercise rights traditionally associated with equity
ownership in a company. For instance, an investor would not be able to resell or
otherwise dispose of their shares in the company without complying with Article III of
the Stockholders Agreement, which establishes certain permitted transfers, and
transfers that must be approved by the company’s Board of Directors. Investors should
carefully review the terms of the Stockholders Agreement, which is included as an
exhibit to this offering statement, of which this offering document is part and be
certain they are willing to accept the contractual terms of the Stockholders Agreement
limiting their ability to exercise full control of their shares. In addition to the forum
selection provisions and jury trial waiver described below, for further emphasis the
company is highlighting the following risks associated with the Stockholders
Agreement: The Stockholders Agreement places limitations on the transferability of
our securities. Pursuant to Article [II of the Stockholders Agreement, investors will
not be allowed to transfer shares acquired in this offering, except under limited
circumstance following approval of the Board of Directors of the company. Investors
should note that these restrictions on transferability are in addition to any restrictions
provided by statute or regulation. This means that investors will not be able to dispose
of their shares on their own volition without satisfying the requirements of the
Stockholders Agreement. The Stockholders Agreement ensures that the company will
be controlled by Paolo Tiramani and Galiano Tiramani while the agreement is in
place. Under the Stockholders Agreement, each of Paolo Tiramani and Galiano
Tiramani have the sole right to appoint one director, as well as jointly appoint a third
director. No other stockholder currently has any right to appoint directors to the
company’s board of directors. This means that investors will have no control over the
management of the company, or policy setting role of the board of directors. Instead,
investors must rely on the efforts of Paolo Tiramani and Galiano Tiramani. Investors
who are married will be required to deliver a spousal consent to the Stockholders
Agreement. The company requires that a married investor provide a spousal consent
to the Stockholders Agreement. A spousal consent is important to the company
because in the event of dissolution of a marriage, or death of the investor with the
spouse inheriting the securities in this offering, the spouse taking possession of the



shares will be bound by the terms of the Stockholders Agreement, providing certainty
to the company for the enforcement of the agreement. The company requires that the
spousal consent be provided to the company within 15 days of confirmation of an
investment in the company. While non-receipt of a spousal consent when necessary
may result in equitable remedies pursuant to the Stockholders Agreement, it is not a
condition of the investment or being a stockholder of the company. This means that
investors whose shares are transferred by reason of dissolution of marriage or death of
the investor may be in breach of the Stockholders Agreement if no spousal consent
was provided to the company.

Investors in this offering may not be entitled to a jury trial with respect to claims
arising under the subscription agreement or Stockholders Agreement, which could
result in less favorable outcomes to the plaintifi{s) in any action under these
agreements.

Investors in this offering will be bound by the subscription agreement and
Stockholders Agreement, both of which include a provision under which investors
waive the right to a jury trial of any claim they may have against the company arising
out of or relating to these agreements. By signing these agreements, the investor
warrants that the investor has reviewed this waiver with his or her legal counsel, and
knowingly and voluntarily waives the investor’s jury trial rights following consultation
with the investor’s legal counsel. If we opposed a jury trial demand based on the
waiver, a court would determine whether the waiver was enforceable based on the
facts and circumstances of that case in accordance with the applicable state and
federal law. To our knowledge, the enforceability of a contractual pre-dispute jury
trial waiver in connection with claims arising under the federal securities laws has not
been finally adjudicated by a federal court. However, we believe that a contractual pre-
dispute jury trial waiver provision is generally enforceable, including under the laws
of the State of Nevada, which governs the subscription agreement. In determining
whether to enforce a contractual pre-dispute jury trial waiver provision, courts will
generally consider whether the visibility of the jury trial waiver provision within the
agreement is sufficiently prominent such that a party knowingly, intelligently and
voluntarily waived the right to a jury trial. We believe that this is the case with respect
to the subscription agreement. You should consult legal counsel regarding the jury
waiver provision before entering into the subscription agreement. If you bring a claim
against the company in connection with matters arising under the subscription
agreement or Stockholders Agreement, including claims under federal securities laws,
you may not be entitled to a jury trial with respect to those claims, which may have
the effect of limiting and discouraging lawsuits against us. If a lawsuit is brought
against us under one of these agreements, it may be heard only by a judge or justice of
the applicable trial court, which would be conducted according to different civil
procedures and may result in different outcomes than a trial by jury would have had,
including results that could be less favorable to the plaintiff(s) in such an action.
Nevertheless, if this jury trial waiver provision is not permitted by applicable law, an
action could proceed under the terms of the subscription agreement or Stockholders
Agreement with a jury trial. No condition, stipulation or provision of the subscription
agreement or Stockholders Agreement serves as a waiver by any holder of our shares



or by us of compliance with any substantive provision of the federal securities laws
and the rules and regulations promulgated under those laws.

Our Articles of Incorporation, Stockholders Agreement, and subscription agreement
each include a forum selection provision, which could result in less favorable
outcomes to the plaintiff(s) in any action against our company. Articles of
Incorporation

Our Articles of Incorporation includes a forum selection provision that requires any
claims against us by stockholders involving, with limited exceptions: -brought in the
name or right of the Corporation or on its behalf; -asserting a claim for breach of any
fiduciary duty owed by any director, officer, employee or agent of the company to the
company or the company’s stockholders; -arising or asserting a claim arising pursuant
to any provision of Chapters 78 or 92A of the Nevada Revised Statutes or any
provision of these Articles of Incorporation (including any Preferred Stock
designation) or the bylaws; -to interpret, apply, enforce or determine the validity of
these Articles of Incorporation (including any Preferred Stock designation) or the
bylaws; or -asserting a claim governed by the internal affairs doctrine. Any of the
above actions are required to be brought in the Eighth Judicial District Court of Clark
County, Nevada. If the Eighth Juridical District Court of Clark County does not have
jurisdiction, then the matter may be adjudicated in another state district court in the
State of Nevada, or in federal court located within the State of Nevada. This forum
selection provision may limit investors’ ability to bring claims in judicial forums that
they find favorable to such disputes and may discourage lawsuits with respect to such
claims. Note, this provision does not apply to any suits brought to enforce any liability
or duty created by the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, or to any claim for which the federal courts have exclusive
jurisdiction.

Our Articles of Incorporation, Stockholders Agreement, and subscription agreement
each include a forum selection provision, which could result in less favorable
outcomes to the plaintiff(s) in any action against our company. Stockholders
Agreement

Our Stockholders Agreement includes a forum selection provision that requires any
suit, action, or proceeding based in contract or tort arising from the Stockholders
Agreement be brought in the Eighth Judicial District Court of Clark County, Nevada. [f
the Eighth Juridical District Court of Clark County does not have jurisdiction, then the
matter may be adjudicated in another state district court in the State of Nevada, or in
federal court located within the State of Nevada. This forum selection provision may
limit investors’ ability to bring claims in judicial forums that they find favorable to
such disputes and may discourage lawsuits with respect to such claims. Section 22 of
the Securities Act creates concurrent jurisdiction for federal and state courts over all
suits brought to enforce any duty or liability created by the Securities Act or the rules
and regulations thereunder. We believe that the exclusive forum provision applies to
claims arising under the Securities Act, but there is uncertainty as to whether a court
would enforce such a provision in this context. Section 27 of the Exchange Act creates
exclusive federal jurisdiction over all suits brought to enforce any duty or liability
created by the Exchange Act or the rules and regulations thereunder. As a result, the



exclusive forum provision may not be used to bring actions in state courts for suits
brought to enforce any duty or liability created by the Exchange Act or any other claim
for which the federal courts have exclusive jurisdiction. Investors will not be deemed
to have waived the company’s compliance with the federal securities laws and the
rules and regulations thereunder.

Our Articles of Incorporation, Stockholders Agreement, and subscription agreement
each include a forum selection provision, which could result in less favorable
outcomes to the plaintiff(s) in any action against our company. Subscription
Agreement

Our subscription agreement for each manner of investing and class of security
includes a forum selection provision that requires any suit, action, or proceeding
arising from the subscription agreement be brought in a state of federal court of
competent jurisdiction located within the State of Nevada. This forum selection
provision may limit investors” ability to bring claims in judicial forums that they find
favorable to such disputes and may discourage lawsuits with respect to such claims.
Section 22 of the Securities Act creates concurrent jurisdiction for federal and state
courts over all suits brought to enforce any duty or liability created by the Securities
Act or the rules and regulations thereunder. We believe that the exclusive forum
provision applies to claims arising under the Securities Act, but there is uncertainty as
to whether a court would enforce such a provision in this context. Section 27 of the
Exchange Act creates exclusive federal jurisdiction over all suits brought to enforce
any duty or liability created by the Exchange Act or the rules and regulations
thereunder. As a result, the exclusive forum provision may not be used to bring
actions in state courts for suits brought to enforce any duty or liability created by the
Exchange Act or any other claim for which the federal courts have exclusive
jurisdiction. Investors will not be deemed to have waived the company’s compliance
with the federal securities laws and the rules and regulations thereunder.



Ownership and Capital Structure; Rights of the Securities

Ownership

The following table sets forth information regarding beneficial ownership of the
company’s holders of 20% or more of any class of voting securities as of the date of
this Offering Statement filing.

Stockholder Name|Number of Securities Owned |Type of Security Owned|Percentage
Paolo Tiramani  (2,220,000,000 Common Stock 74.0%
Galiano Tiramani (773,750,000 Common Stock 26.0%

The Company's Securities

The Company has authorized Common Stock, Series A Preferred Stock, Series A-1
Preferred Stock, and Series A-2 Preferred Stock. As part of the Regulation
Crowdfunding raise, the Company will be offering up to 4,531,966 of Series A-2
Preferred Stock.

Common Stock

The amount of security authorized is 6,600,000,000 with a total of 3,000,000,000
outstanding.

Voting Rights

Holders of Common Stock are entitled to one vote for each share of Common Stock
held at all meetings of the Stockholders and written actions in lieu of meetings,
including the election of directors.

Material Rights

The total number of shares outstanding on a fully diluted basis, 4, 199,084,525 shares,
includes 3,000,000,000 shares of Common Stock, 187, 794,550 shares of Series A
Preferred Stock, 855,594,575 shares of Series A-1 Preferred Stock, 7,895,600 of Series
A-2 Preferred Stock, and 150,000,000 of stock options. ™

Right to Receive Liquidation Distributions

Subject to any rights of the holders of the Non-Voting Preferred Stock, in any event of
any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the company,
after payment to all creditors of the company, the remaining assets of the company
available for distribution to its stockholders will be distributed among the holders of
Common Stock on a pro rata basis by the number of shares held by each holder.

Rights and Preferences

Holders of the company’s Common Stock have no preemptive, conversion, or other
rights, and there are no redemptive or sinking fund provisions applicable to the



company's Common Stock.

Stockholders Agreement

All holders of the company’s Common Stock and Series A-2, A-1 and Series A
Preferred Stock will be subject to our Stockholders Agreement. The following
summary is qualified in its entirety by the terms and conditions of the Stockholders
Agreement itself.

Directors and Management of the Company

The Stockholders Agreement provides for control of the Board of Directors of the
company by Paolo Tiramani and Galiano Tiramani. The Stockholder Agreement
further provides for supermajority approval of the voting holders of Common Stock of
the company for the company to undertake specified actions.

Restriction on Transfer

Holders of the Common Stock and Series A-2, A-1 and Series A Preferred Stock are
restricted from transferring their shares acquired in this offering, except under limited
circumstance following approval of the Board of Directors of the company. The
purpose of this provision is to grant a measure of control to the Board of Director to
ensure that any transfer does not result in ownership interests by competitors of the
company, or would create significant burdens or obligations for the company to
comply with federal or state laws. For any transfer approved by the Board of Directors,
the transferee will be required to become party to the Stockholders Agreement as well.

Release of Obligations Upon Transfer

As the Stockholders Agreement applies to senior management of the company as well
as investors in this offering, it includes obligations that may not be applicable to all
investors because of their circumstances. For instance, the Stockholders Agreement
includes a requirement to maintain the confidentiality of non-public information
about the company. However, an investor in this offering would likely only have
access to public information, and never encounter an instance in which the investor
would incur any liability to the company for sharing of such information. Other
provisions, like the representation about the capacity or authority to enter into the
Stockholders Agreement, if breached by the investor, may require corrective actions to
be taken, which create liability to the company by the investor. Further, as noted
above, the Stockholders Agreement includes certain restrictions on transfer which
must be complied with, otherwise corrective actions would need to be taken, creating
a liability to the company by the investor.

That said, investors will only be subject to the provisions of the Stockholders
Agreement while holding the shares of the company. Should an investor transfer of all
the shares held by the investor, in compliance with the Stockholders Agreement, the
investor will have no further obligations under the Stockholders Agreement and not
be liable to the company for any action that may be considered a breach of the



Stockholders Agreement.
Termination of Stockholders Agreement

The Stockholders Agreement will terminate upon the earliest of (1) the consummation
of an IPO pursuant to an effective registration statement; (2) a merger or business
combination resulting in the company being traded on a national securities exchange;
(3) the date that there are no holders of the company’s equity securities; (4)
dissolution or winding up of the company; or (5) by unanimous agreement of the
stockholders of the company.

Forum Selection Provision

The Stockholders Agreement requires that any suit or action based on contract or tort,
or otherwise to enforce any provision of the Stockholders Agreement be brought in
the Eighth Judicial District Court of Clark County, Nevada. If the Eighth Judicial
District Court of Clark County does not have jurisdiction, then the matter may be
adjudicated in another state district court in the State of Nevada, or in federal court
located within the State of Nevada. Although we believe the provision benefits us by
providing increased consistency in the application of Nevada law in the types of
lawsuits that may be brought to enforce contractual rights and obligations under the
Stockholders Agreement and in limiting our litigation costs, to the extent it is
enforceable, the forum selection provision may limit investors’ ability to bring claims
in judicial forums that they find favorable to such disputes and may discourage
lawsuits with respect to such claims. The company has adopted the provision to limit
the time and expense incurred by its management to challenge any such claims. As a
company with a small management team, this provision allows its officers to not lose
a significant amount of time travelling to any particular forum so they may continue
to focus on operations of the company. Section 22 of the Securities Act creates
concurrent jurisdiction for federal and state courts over all suits brought to enforce
any duty or liability created by the Securities Act or the rules and regulations
thereunder. We believe that the exclusive forum provision applies to claims arising
under the Securities Act, but there is uncertainty as to whether a court would enforce
such a provision in this context. Section 27 of the Exchange Act creates exclusive
federal jurisdiction over all suits brought to enforce any duty or liability created by the
Exchange Act or the rules and regulations thereunder. As a result, the exclusive forum
provision may not be used to bring actions in state courts for suits brought to enforce
any duty or liability created by the Exchange Act or any other claim for which the
federal courts have exclusive jurisdiction. Investors will not be deemed to have waived
the company’s compliance with the federal securities laws and the rules and
regulations thereunder.

Jury Trial Waiver

The Stockholders Agreement also provides that investors waive the right to a jury trial
of any claim they may have against us arising out of or relating to the Stockholders
Agreement, including any claim under federal securities laws. By investing in this
offering, the investor knowingly and voluntarily waives his or her jury trial rights. If



we opposed a jury trial demand based on the waiver, a court would determine whether
the waiver was enforceable given the facts and circumstances of that case in
accordance with applicable case law. In addition, by agreeing to the provision,
investors will not be deemed to have waived the company’s compliance with the
federal securities laws and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

Spousal Consent

The company requires that a married investor provide a spousal consent to the
Stockholders Agreement. A spousal consent is important to the company because in
the event of dissolution of a marriage, or death of the investor with the spouse
inheriting the securities in this offering, the spouse taking possession of the shares
will be bound by the terms of the Stockholders Agreement, providing certainty to the
company for the enforcement of the agreement. The company requires that the
spousal consent be provided to the company within 15 days of confirmation of an
investment in the company. While, non-receipt of a spousal consent when necessary
may result in equitable remedies pursuant to the Stockholders Agreement, it is not a
condition of the investment or being a stockholder of the company.

Please see the Company's Amended And Restated Stockholder Agreement attached as
Exhibit F.

* The number of fullv diluted outstanding shares utilized in the pre-money valuation
is as of April 2022. The total number of shares outstanding may change once the
shares sold in the Company's Reg A offering have been determined and finalized.

Series A Preferred Stock

The amount of security authorized is 250,000,000 with a total of 187,794,550
outstanding.

Voting Rights

Holders of Non-Voting Series A-2, A-1 and Series A Preferred Stock will have no
voting rights on matters put to the stockholders for a vote.

Material Rights

The total number of shares outstanding on a fully diluted basis, 4,199,084,525 shares,
includes 3,000,000,000 shares of Common Stock, 187,794,550 shares of Series A
Preferred Stock, 853,594,575 shares of Series A-1 Preferred Stock, 7,895,600 of Series
A-2 Preferred Stock, and 150,000,000 shares of stock options.*

Right to Receive Liquidation Distributions

In any event of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of
the company, after payment to all creditors of the company, the remaining assets of
the company available for distribution to its stockholders will be distributed first
among the holders of Non-Voting Series A-2, A-1 and Series A Preferred Stock



together, and then to the holders of Common Stock. The Non-Voting Series A
Preferred Stock issued in our concurrent offerings under Regulation Crowdfunding
and Regulation D include a preferred liquidation preference in an amount equal to
$0.017 per share held (the “Preferred Payment” following the 10-for-1 forward split).

If there are insufficient assets for the Preferred Payment, then the holders of the Non-
Voting Series A-2, A-1 and Series A Preferred Stock will receive their pro rata share of
available assets upon liquidation of the company. By way of example, if in the event of
liquidation the company were only to have distributable assets of $0.50 for every
dollar invested by the preferred stock holders, each holder of Series A Preferred Stock
would receive $0.0085 per share held, the Series A-1 Preferred Stock holders would
receive $0.0395 per share held, the Series A-2 Preferred Stock holders would receive
$0.40 per share held, and the holders of Common Stock would receive nothing.

Conversion Rights

Upon the occurrence of firm underwriting registered offering (an “IPO”), the Non-
Voting Series A-2, A-1 and Series A Preferred Stock will automatically convert into
voting Common Stock of the company.

Rights and Preferences

Holders of the company's Non-Voting Series A-2, A-1 and Series A Preferred Stock
have no preemptive, conversion, or other rights, and there are no redemptive or

sinking fund provisions applicable to the company's Non-Voting Series A-1 and Series
A Preferred Stock.

Please see the Company's Amended And Restated Stockholder Agreement attached as
Exhibit F.

* The number of fully diluted outstanding shares utilized in the pre-money valuation
is as of April 2022, The total number of shares outstanding may change once the
shares sold in the Company's Reg A offering have been determined and finalized.

Series A-1 Preferred Stock

The amount of security authorized is 1,100,000,000 with a total of 853,394,375
outstanding,.

Voting Rights

Holders of Non-Voting Series A-2, A-1 and Series A Preferred Stock will have no
voting rights on matters put to the stockholders for a vote.

Material Rights

The total number of shares outstanding on a fully diluted basis, 4, 199,084,525 shares,
includes 35,000,000,000 shares of Common Stock, 187,794,550 shares of Series A
Preferred Stock, 853,394,375 shares of Series A-1 Preferred Stock, 7,895,600 of Series



A-2 Preferred Stock, and 150,000,000 of stock options.™

Right to Receive Liquidation Distributions

In any event of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of
the company, after payment to all creditors of the company, the remaining assets of
the company available for distribution to its stockholders will be distributed first
among the holders of Non-Voting Series A-2, A-1 and Series A Preferred Stock
together, and then to the holders of Common Stock. The Non-Voting Series A
Preferred Stock issued in our concurrent offerings under Regulation Crowdfunding
and Regulation D include a preferred liquidation preference in an amount equal to
$0.017 per share held (the “Preferred Payment” following the 10-for-1 forward split).
This Preferred Payment represents a bonus those holders, as they paid the equivalent
of $0.014 per share and are eligible for a Preferred Payment of $0.017 per share. The
Preferred Payment for the Series A-1 Preferred Stock is $0.079 per share. The
Preferred Payment for the Series A-2 Preferred Stock is $0.80 per share, which is equal
to the per share price in this offering. Investors who received their shares of Series A-1
Preferred Stock in the company’s offering under Regulation Crowdfunding at $0.071
per share will have the same Preferred Payment of $0.079 per share, representing a
bonus to those holders as well.If there are insufficient assets for the Preferred
Payment, then the holders of the Non-Voting Series A-2, A-1 and Series A Preferred
Stock will receive their pro rata share of available assets upon liquidation of the
company. By way of example, if in the event of liquidation the company were only to
have distributable assets of $0.50 for every dollar invested by the preferred stock
holders, each holder of Series A Preferred Stock would receive $0.0085 per share held,
the Series A-1 Preferred Stock holders would receive $0.0395 per share held, the Series
A-2 Preferred Stock holders would receive $0.40 per share held, and the holders of
Common Stock would receive nothing.

Conversion Rights

Upon the occurrence of firm underwriting registered offering (an “IPO”), the Non-
Voting Series A-2, A-1 and Series A Preferred Stock will automatically convert into
voting Common Stock of the company.

Rights and Preferences

Holders of the company’s Non-Voting Series A-2, A-1 and Series A Preferred Stock
have no preemptive, conversion, or other rights, and there are no redemptive or
sinking fund provisions applicable to the company's Non-Voting Series A-1 and Series
A Preferred Stock.

Please see the Company's Amended And Restated Stockholder Agreement attached as
Exhibit F.

* The number of fullv diluted outstanding shares utilized in the pre-money valuation
is as of April 2022. The total number of shares outstanding may change once the
shares sold in the Company's Reg A offering have been determined and finalized.



Series A-2 Preferred Stock

The amount of security authorized is 115,000,000 with a total of 7,895,600
outstanding.

Voting Rights

Holders of Non-Voting Series A-2, A-1 and Series A Preferred Stock will have no
voting rights on matters put to the stockholders for a vote.

Material Rights

The total number of shares outstanding on a fully diluted basis, 4,199,084,525 shares,
includes 5,000,000,000 shares of Common Stock, 187,794,550 shares of Series A
Preferred Stock, 855,394,575 shares of Series A-1 Preferred Stock, 7,895,600 of Series
A-2 Preferred Stock, and 150,000,000 of stock options. ™

Each investor ("Stockholder™) who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a
party to the attached Amended and Restated Stockholder Agreement ("Stockholder
Agreement” or "Agreement”)

General Restriction on Transfer

Except as permitted otherwise, each Stockholder agrees that such Stockholder will
not, directly or indirectly, voluntarily or involuntarily, Transfer anv of its Shares.

Prior notice shall be given to the Company by a Stockholder of any proposed Transfer
of Shares, including a Transfer to a Permitted Transferee. Notwithstanding any other
provision of this Agreement, each Stockholder agrees that it will not, directly or
indirectly, Transfer any of its Shares, except as permitted otherwise.

Right of First Refusal

If at any time a Non-Initial Stockholder receives a bona fide offer from any Third Party
Purchaser to purchase all or any portion of the Shares (the “Offered Shares™) owned
by the Offtering Stockholder and the Offering Stockholder desires to Transfer the
Offered Shares , then the Offering Stockholder must first make an offering of the
Offered Shares to the Company and then to the Initial Stockholders in accordance
with the provisions in the Stockholder Agreement.

Drag-Along

If one or more Stockholders ( intend to sell, in one transaction or a series of
transactions, Shares to a Third Party Purchaser, that constitute in the aggregate more
than 50% of the Company’s total outstanding Shares, and it is a condition of the Third
Party Purchaser for the completion of such sale that such Third Party Purchaser
purchase all of the Company’s issued and outstanding Shares, then the Selling
Stockholder(s) shall have the right (the “Drag-Along Right”) to require each other
Stockholder to sell all, but not less than all of its Shares to the Third Party Purchaser
on the same terms and conditions, mutatis mutandis, as are applicable to the sale by



the Selling Stockholder(s) of all of its/their Shares to the Third Party Purchaser.

Right to Receive Liquidation Distributions

In any event of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of
the company, after payment to all creditors of the company, the remaining assets of
the company available for distribution to its stockholders will be distributed first
among the holders of Non-Voting Series A-2, A-1 and Series A Preferred Stock
together, and then to the holders of Common Stock. The Non-Voting Series A
Preferred Stock issued in our concurrent offerings under Regulation Crowdfunding
and Regulation D include a preferred liquidation preference in an amount equal to
$0.017 per share held (the “Preferred Payment” following the 10-for-1 forward split).

If there are insufficient assets for the Preferred Payment, then the holders of the Non-
Voting Series A-2, A-1 and Series A Preferred Stock will receive their pro rata share of
available assets upon liquidation of the company. By way of example, if in the event of
liquidation the company were only to have distributable assets of $0.50 for every
dollar invested by the preferred stockholders, each holder of Series A Preferred Stock
would receive $0.0085 per share held, the Series A-1 Preferred Stock holders would
receive $0.0395 per share held, the Series A-2 Preferred Stock holders would receive
$0.40 per share held, and the holders of Common Stock would receive nothing.

Conversion Rights

Upon the occurrence of firm underwriting registered offering (an “IPO”), the Non-
Voting Series A-2, A-1 and Series A Preferred Stock will automatically convert into
voting Common Stock of the company.

Rights and Preferences

Holders of the company's Non-Voting Series A-2, A-1 and Series A Preferred Stock
have no preemptive, conversion, or other rights, and there are no redemptive or

sinking fund provisions applicable to the company's Non-Voting Series A-1 and Series
A Preferred Stock.

Please see the Company's Amended And Restated Stockholders Agreement attached
as Exhibit F for the securities other material rights.

* The number of fully diluted outstanding shares utilized in the pre-money valuation
is as of April 2022. The total number of shares outstanding may change once the
shares sold in the Company's Reg A offering have been determined and finalized.

What it means to be a minority holder

As a minority holder of Series A-2 Preferred Stock of the company, you will have
limited rights in regards to the corporate actions of the company, including additional
issuances of securities, company repurchases of securities, a sale of the company or its
significant assets, or company transactions with related parties. Further, investors in



this offering may have rights less than those of other investors, and will have limited
influence on the corporate actions of the company.

Dilution

Investors should understand the potential for dilution. The investor’s stake in a
company could be diluted due to the company issuing additional shares. In other
words, when the company issues more shares, the percentage of the company that you
own will go down, even though the value of the company may go up. You will own a
smaller piece of a larger company. This increase in number of shares outstanding
could result from a stock offering (such as an initial public offering, another
crowdfunding round, a venture capital round, angel investment), employees
exercising stock options, or by conversion of certain instruments (e.g. convertible
bonds, preferred shares or warrants) into stock. If the company decides to issue more
shares, an investor could experience value dilution, with each share being worth less
than before, and control dilution, with the total percentage an investor owns being
less than before. There may also be earnings dilution, with a reduction in the amount
earned per share (though this typically occurs only if the company offers dividends,
and most early stage companies are unlikely to offer dividends, preferring to invest
any earnings into the company).

Transferability of securities

For a vear, the securities can only be resold:
e [nanlPO;
e To the company;
e To an accredited investor; and

* To a member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, to a trust
controlled by the purchaser, to a trust created for the benefit of a member of the
family of the purchaser or the equivalent, or in connection with the death or
divorce of the purchaser or other similar circumstance.

Recent Offerings of Securities
We have made the following issuances of securities within the last three years:

e Name: Preferred Stock
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $1,070,000.00
Number of Securities Sold: 7,657,141
Use of proceeds: Factory
Date: October 10, 2020
Offering exemption relied upon: Regulation CF



Name: Preferred Stock

Type of security sold: Equity

Final amount sold: $1,102,224.76
Number of Securities Sold: 7,806,609
Use of proceeds: Factory

Date: October 10, 2020

Offering exemption relied upon: 506(c)

Name: Preferred Stock

Type of security sold: Equity

Final amount sold: $532,250.00
Number of Securities Sold: 3,130,882
Use of proceeds: Factory

Date: January 01, 2021

Offering exemption relied upon: 506(c)

Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $988,827.69

Use of proceeds: Factory

Date: March 01, 2021

Offering exemption relied upon: 506(c)

Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $2,000,000.00

Use of proceeds: Factory

Date: April 01, 2021

Offering exemption relied upon: 506(c)

Name: Common Stock

Type of security sold: Equity

Final amount sold: $4,962,663.00

Number of Securities Sold: 6,757,608

Use of proceeds: Factory

Date: November 13, 2021

Offering exemption relied upon: Regulation CF

Name: Preferred Stock

Type of security sold: Equity

Final amount sold: $75,000,000.00

Number of Securities Sold: 133,997,515

Use of proceeds: UP TO 85,625,000 SHARES OF NON-VOTING SERIES A-2
PREFERRED STOCK AND UP TO 85,625,000 SHARES OF COMMON STOCK INTO
WHICH THE NON-VOTING SERIES A-2 PREFERRED STOCK MAY CONVERT
AND UP TO 12,658,227 SHARES OF NON-VOTING SERIES A-1 PREFERRED
STOCK AND UP TO 12,658,227 SHARES OF COMMON STOCK INTO WHICH THE
NON-VOTING SERIES A-1 PREFERRED STOCK MAY CONVERT AND UP TO



55,714,286 SHARES OF NON-VOTING SERIES A PREFERRED STOCK AND UP
TO 35,714,286 SHARES OF COMMON STOCK INTO WHICH THE NON-VOTING
SERIES A PREFERRED STOCK MAY CONVERT AND UP TO 6,250,000 SHARES
OF COMMON STOCK SOLD BY A SELLING SECURITYHOLDER

Date: January 22, 2021

Offering exemption relied upon: Regulation A+

Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Financial Condition

You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and
results of our operations together with our financial statements and related notes
appearing at the end of this Offering Memorandum. This discussion contains forward-
looking statements reflecting our current expectations that involve risks and
uncertainties. Actual results and the timing of events may differ materially from those
contained in these forward-looking statements due to a number of factors, including
those discussed in the section entitled “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this Offering
Memorandum.

Results of Operations

Circumstances which led to the performance of financial statements:

Revenue

We have only recently commenced sales of our principal products and our results to
date reflect efforts to build our initial business. Our 2020 gross revenues were
$1,955,795 compared with 2020 gross revenues of $90,000. In late 2021, we began
delivering Boxes under the contracts with ADS, Inc., and future financial statements
will reflect revenues from this contract, along with certain costs of goods sold like raw
materials and assembly costs, shipping, and labor.

Included in the costs of goods sold will be a 1% royalty paid to Build IP LLC, a
company controlled by our founder and CEO, Paolo Tiramani, under the terms of our
exclusive license agreement to utilize the patented technology necessary to produce
and deliver our Boxes.

Expenses

In 2021, we incurred $8,900,992 of operating expenses, compared to $1,162,792 in
2020 reflecting a significant increase in operating activity. Our main expense incurred
in 2020 was general and administrative and was related to increased pavyroll costs
resulting from our management beginning to be compensated for their services and
attorney fees related to the company’s offerings. That expense amounted to $677,315
or 58.3% of our total expenses for 2020. We anticipate that general and administrative



expenses will continue to increase as we undertake activities to begin production of
our Casita Boxes. These expenses are reflected in our interim financial statements,
which show $2,157,986 in expenses for the first six months of 2021, compared to
$326,665 for the same period in 2020. We also expect an increase in rent, shop
supplies, equipment, utilities, raw materials and payroll expenses as we ramp up
operations.

Net Loss

Based on the foregoing, we incurred a net loss of $13,584,157 in 2021, compared to a
net loss of $1,162,792 in 2020.

Historical results and cash flows:

The company has operated at a loss since its inception, and these losses are likely to
continue until we are able to begin manufacturing our product. The company’s cash
flow was from net proceeds from offerings. We plan to deliver about 210 homes at
$59,267 per unit, which puts the projected sales at $12M with projected COGS and
expenses at 522M.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

What capital resources are currently available to the Company? (Cash on hand,
existing lines of credit, shareholder loans, etc...)

As of December 31, 2021, the company held $21,415,506 in cash.

During 2020, the holders of our Common Stock financed the company through a
promissory note, for which the proceeds were used for operations and manufacturing
three Casita prototypes. As of December 31, 2020, the loan amount was $563,911, plus
accrued, and unpaid interest thereon and is due on demand. Beginning in July 2020,
we undertook an offering of securities under Regulation Crowdfunding, which was
also available to accredited investors pursuant to a concurrent offering under Rule
506(c) of Regulation D. The Regulation Crowdfunding offering closed in September
2020, Through these offerings, we received net proceeds of $989,749.99 on gross
proceeds of approximately $1.07 million in our offering under Regulation
Crowdfunding, and aggregate proceeds of $2,439,225 as of December 31, 2020, with an
additional $265,250 received in 2021.

What was particularly exciting about the offering under Regulation Crowdfunding is
how much interest we received. During the offering, we had received oversubscription
interest from investors amounting to approximately $4 million. While we were
restricted to only receiving gross proceeds of $1.07 million, it demonstrated to us
there is great interest in the product, and interest from investors.

Beginning in November 2020, we commenced an offering of convertible notes
pursuant to Rule 506(c) of Regulation D. We sought to raise up to $50,000,000 in that
offering. The notes sold under that offering will convert into the Non-Voting Series A-



1 Preferred Stock of the company upon qualification of this offering under Regulation
A. As of February 8, 2022, we have sold $31,390,208 worth of convertible notes,
representing 538,676,828 shares of our Series A-1 Preferred Stock, with $5,108,070
received prior to June 30, 2021. On February 8, 2022, we received an additional
$1,000,000 from the sale of these notes.

Additionally, on May 3, 2021, the company filed a Form C to undertake an additional
offering under Regulation Crowdfunding to at-first raise an additional $3.93 million
under that exemption following amendments to Regulation Crowdfunding that went
effective on March 15, 2021. This offering was amended to raise up to $5 million after
12 months had passed from the close of the company’s 2020 Regulation Crowdfunding
offering. Our 2021 Regulation Crowdfunding offering was terminated on November
12, 2021, and resulted in gross proceed of approximately $4.8 million, with $3,267,114
received prior to June 30, 2021.

How do the funds of this campaign factor into your financial resources? (Are these
funds critical to your company operations? Or do you have other funds or capital
resources available?)

The funds from this campaign are not necessarily critical to our operations but will be
to purchase additional equipment and build our second assembly line for
manufacturing and eventually move to a larger facility that will provide the space
necessary to increase our productivity by 500%.

Are the funds from this campaign necessary to the viability of the company? (Of the
total funds that your company has, how much of that will be made up of funds raised
from the crowdfunding campaign?)

The funds from this campaign are not necessary for the viability of the company but
will provide the necessary capital to expand production facilities and reduce the
timeline to producing the necessary demand we have received from our customers and
investors.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your minimum? What
expenses is this estimate based on?

If we can raise the minimum amount from offerings, the company will have the
necessary capital to pay StartEngine for their fees, along with some equipment,
overhead, and marketing. We will have enough capital to operate for additional time.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your maximum funding
goal?

If we can raise the maximum amount from this offering, the company will have



enough capital to operate for approximately 18 months. To meet the demand for our
product, we will need to expand our capacity to produce more units.

Are there any additional future sources of capital available to your company?

(Required capital contributions, lines of credit, contemplated future capital raises,
etc...)

The company presently has not considered additional options of having future
offerings to meet the capital requirements to continue to grow and increase efficiency
and lower production costs.

Indebtedness

¢ Creditor: Loan Payable to Officers
Amount Owed: $563,911.00
Interest Rate: 3.25%
The Company executed a promissory note to the Company’s majority
shareholder and CEO subsequent to the year ended December 31, 2020, to
formalize the terms. The proceeds, for which all were received in 2020, were
used for operations and manufacturing three casita prototypes. The principal
balance outstanding bears a simple interest rate at the annual “prime rate”
published by the Wall Street Journal (3.25% at December 31, 2020) plus one
percent (1.0%). Interest shall accrue on the entire principal sum of this

promissory note beginning January 1, 2021. The note was paid in full in August
2021.

e Creditor: PPP Loan
Amount Owed: $49,166.00
Interest Rate: 0.0%
In March 2021, the Company obtained a PPP loan in the amount of $49,166. The
loan was forgiven in 2022.

Related Party Transactions

¢ Name of Entity: majority shareholder and CEQ
Relationship to Company: Officer
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: The Company has a contract with
the majority shareholder and CEO to share certain costs related to office space,
support staff, and consultancy services.
Material Terms: The Company entered into an exclusive license agreement with
Build IP LLC, an entity controlled by the Company’s majority shareholder and
CEOQ. Under the terms of the agreement, Build IP LLC has agreed to license its
structure, transport, and trademark patents to the Company. Quarterly royalty



payments of 1% are due on royalty-bearing sales. As of December 31, 2021,
$19,558 has been recorded as royalty expense in the accompanying financial
statements which is 1% of the sales. See Note 5 and 7 for additional related party
transactions in the Audit.

Valuation

Pre-Money Valuation: $3,359,267,620.00
Valuation Details:

The Company determined its valuation based on an analysis of multiple factors,
including its prior valuation; reservations, paid deposits, and purchase orders;
projected sales and DCF analysis; market size, and potential disruptability of our
product.

The Company had an implied valuation of $42M in its prior Reg CF and Reg D
offerings. Our prior Reg CF raise was based on a plan to build a small factory that
would produce 300 casitas per year. Since then, we have gained a lot of traction,
including over a billion dollars in potential revenue from reservations, thousand of
paid deposits, and a large federal government contract. As a result, we are starting a
factory that is 10x larger, and we plan to produce 3,600 casitas per year.

Although we are a pre-revenue company, the federal government has placed two
purchase orders totaling $9.2M. We expect to be in production this year and deliver
about 210 homes at $59,267 per unit, including this government order, which puts the
projected sales at $12M with projected COGS and expenses at $22M. By 2022, we plan
to produce 3,000 homes at $50,000 per unit, which puts the projected sales at $180M
with COGS and expenses at $134M. By 2024, we project to produce 3,500 homes at
$70,000 per unit, which puts the projected sales at $245M with COGS and expenses at
$174M.

Based on the projections and manufacturing plans created by the Boxabl team with the
help of Porsche Consulting, we expect our factory to produce 3,600 homes per year
once it is operating at full speed on two shifts. These projections are based on size of
the building, type of equipment, and total number of laborers needed. We will spend
2021 setting up and learning the ropes, when manufacturing is fully operational, we
expect it to be very fast.

Another important factor that we considered was the total market size of the global
building construction industry, which was valued at $5.8 trillion in 2020. At Boxabl,
we believe that we have the potential to be a solution for almost any building type. We
also believe that our technology can disrupt building construction on a massive scale
by moving one of the last big pre-factory industries into the factory assembly line.

We looked at other public companies when considering the valuation. We also took
other disruptive hardware startups, and factory built housing companies, averaged



their PE ratios and applied a large discount. We also performed a discounted cash flow
analysis. We weighed all these considerations carefully when choosing our valuation.
We also took demand into account, since we had a prior successful Reg CF raise. Even
though the factory we are starting with in lieu of the original Reg CF plan is 10x
bigeer, the valuation is not 10x bigger.

The Company set its valuation internally, without a formal-third party independent
evaluation.

The total number of shares outstanding on a fully diluted basis, 4,199,084,525 shares,
includes 3,000,000,000 shares of Common Stock, 187,794,550 shares of Series A
Preferred Stock, 853,394,575 shares of Series A-1 Preferred Stock, 7,895,600 of Series
A-2 Preferred Stock, and 150,000,000 of stock options.,

The number of fully diluted outstanding shares utilized in the pre-money valuation is
as of April 2022. The total number of shares outstanding may change once the shares
sold in the Company's Reg A offering have been determined and finalized.

Use of Proceeds

If we raise the Target Offering Amount of $10,000.00 we plan to use these proceeds as
follows:

o StartEngine Platform Fees
3.5%

o StartEngine Premium Deferred Fee
96.5%
StartEngine Premium Deferred Fee

If we raise the over allotment amount of $3,625,572.80, we plan to use these proceeds
as follows:

e StartEngine Platform Fees
3.5%

e (perations
96.5%
Equipment and overhead at the factory.

The Company may change the intended use of proceeds if our officers believe it is in
the best interests of the company.

Regulatory Information

Disqualification

No disqualifying event has been recorded in respect to the company or its officers or



directors.

Compliance Failure

The company has not previously failed to comply with the requirements of Regulation
Crowdfunding.

Ongoing Reporting

The Company will file a report electronically with the SEC annually and post the
report on its website no later than April 30 (120 days after Fiscal Year End). Once
posted, the annual report may be found on the Company’s website at
https://www.startengine.com/boxabl (https://www.boxabl.com/annualreport).

The Company must continue to comply with the ongoing reporting requirements
until:

(1) it is required to file reports under Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Exchange
Act;

(2) it has filed at least one (1) annual report pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding and
has fewer than three hundred (300) holders of record and has total assets that do not
exceed $10,000,000;

(3) it has filed at least three (3) annual reports pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding;

(4) it or another party repurchases all of the securities issued in reliance on Section

4(a)(6) of the Securities Act, including anvy payment in full of debt securities or any
complete redemption of redeemable securities; or

(5) 1t liquidates or dissolves its business in accordance with state law.

Updates

Updates on the status of this Offering may be found at: www.startengine.com/boxabl-
cf-2

Investing Process

See Exhibit E to the Offering Statement of which this Offering Memorandum forms a
part.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REVIEW FOR BOXABL INC.

[See attached]



BRLAL, 1249 PM

htrpswww sec goviArchives/edgar'datal |8 16037000 1096906 22001 72 2/box_ 1K him

PART II 2 box_1k.him BOXABL INC, - FOEM |-K

UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 1-K

SPECIAL FINANCIAL REPORT PURSUANT TO REGULATION A
OF THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933

Fuor the fiscal vear ended December 31, 2021

Boxabl Inc.

(Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter)

Mevada B2-3491853

{State or other jurisdiction of incorporation (LE.5, Employver ldentification MNo,)
O Organization)

5345 E. N. Belt Road, North Las Vegas, NV 89115

(Full mailing address of principal executive offices)

T2 -S00-E00
(1ssuer’s telephone number, including area code)

Series A, Series A<, and Series A-2 Preferred Stock
(Title of each class of securities issued pursuant 1o Regulation A)

hitpsfwww sec, gov/ Archives/edgar/data/ T8 1GR3 7000 10969 22001 72 2hox_ 1k him



R2222,12:49 PM htrpswww sec goviArchives/edgar'datal |8 16037000 1096906 22001 72 2/box_ 1K him

Boxabl Inc.
Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

Contents

Independent Auditors” Beport

Balance Sheets

Statements of Operations

Statement of Changes in Stockholders™ Equity (Deficit)
Staterments of Cash Flows

Notes to Financial Statements

F-1

hitpsfwww sec, gov/ Archives/edgar/data/ T8 1GR3 7000 10969 22001 72 2hox_ 1k him

F-2
F-d
F-5
F-tx

F-3



BRLAL, 1249 PM

htrpswww sec goviArchives/edgar'datal |8 16037000 1096906 22001 72 2/box_ 1K him

dbbmickennon

o .:Ir':' i '.hll'h el

Kepriiewed e - Paddic Company Accounting Crooraphd Board

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Management and DMrectors
of Boxabl Ine.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanving financial statements of Boxabl Inc. (the “Company™), which compnse the
balance sheets as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the related statements of operations, stockholders" equity
(deficit), and cash flows for the vears then ended, and the related notes 1o the financial siatements (the “financial
statements” ),

In our opinton, the fnancial statements referred o above present fairly, inall matenial respects, the financial position
of the Company as of December 30, 2021 and 2020, and the resulis of its operations amd its cash flows for the years
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,

Going Concern

The aceompanying Ooancial siatements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as a going
concern. As more fully explained in Note 2 o the financial statements, the Company has incurred losses sinee
inception and i in the carly stages of generating sufficient revenue to fund operations. These factors raise substantial
doubt about the Company's abality to continue as a going concern. Management's plans with respect o these factors
are also descrbed on Note 2, The Company™s fnancial statements do not include any adjustments that might result
from the owtcome of these uncertainties should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern. Chur
conclusion 15 not modified with respect 1o that matter.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted cur audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Our responsibilitics under those standards are further described in the Auditors” Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Company and to mect our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating (o our audits, We believe that
the audit evidence we have obiained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion,

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Munagement 15 responsible for the preparation and fairr presentation of the financial statements in sccordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Amenica, and for the design, implementation, amd
maintenance of intemal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from matenial misstatement, whether due to frawd or crror.

In preparing the fnancial statements, management 1% regquired o evaluate whether there are conditions or evenis,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company's ahility o continue as a going concern
within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditors” Responsibilities for the Audii of the Financial Statemenis

Ouir abjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
matcrial misstatement, whether due to fraud or crror, and (o issuc an auditors™ report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance 1s a high level of assurance but 15 not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with generally sccepled auditing standards will alwavs detect o material
misstatement when it exists, The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements, including omissions, are considered material if there 15 a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user bused
on the financial statements.
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In performing an audit in accordance with generally aceepied auditing standards, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit

Identify and assess the nsks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, amd design ond perform awdit procedures responsive o those nsks. Such procedures include
examining, on 3 test bagiz, evidence regarding the amounis and disclosures in the financial statements
Orbtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the awdit in order to design audit procedures that are
approprate in the circumstances, but nol for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control, Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall prezentation of the financial sialemenis,
Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that rase
substantial doubt aboul the Company's abality 1o continug as a going concern for a reasonable period of
tirme,

We are required 0 communmicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related mamers that we
identified during the audit.

s/ dbbmokennon
San Diego, Califomia
July 29, 2022
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Boxabl Inc.
Balance Sheets
as of December 31, 2021 and 2020

December 31, Drecember 31,
Mzl T
ARRETS
Curremt Asseix!
Chsh and Cash Equaivalenss 5 21413500 - H0Th, 341
Accounis Receivable ARE 4D -
Invesinry 4.016,235 -
Depssins on Invenrory bR L N
Prepaids LIa1T 126,835
[eposits im Escroa 515,756 -
Toum! Carreng Axwets I8 3I5.RRI 3,R03,179
Property, Equipneent, and (hther Assets:
Prioperty amd Equipmenl - Kt 5,109 50 53,222
Deposits on Equipmend fiF 1,041 410, RIG
[redermed Orffering Cosia 13 AHH 1300
Security Deposil 525 D 526,000
Toind Peapserny, Fguiguapnr, ang Cifer e 2 A | I3k B
TOTAL ASSETS §  MHLGITS16 & o, B, 00T
LIARILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (BEFICIT)
Curremt Liabilities:
Accoumls Fayable & 1,304,172 & 126 639
Accrued Expenses 2424955 -
Custeiner Depasns 1.767424 ATha1TE
Dederred Revense EAGT 332 2,344,853
Loan Payable — Beloted Party - 390
Cihir Carnend Liabaliies i, 73% 17400
T Cavrvenr Dhatilivies EO5).622 TA41 s
Lomg-Term Lialsilities:
Convertible Promissory Maoles 30835075 167,700
Acerued Ineress on Comventible Fromissony Roles 1,133,705 -
(eher Long-Term Payabde AR ART -
Tonm! Neores .pﬂlll'i“'llll:' iraad nivertifine .I:'.l'l;.l.l.l.ll"l'.lurr_r Mliwis 33 404 557 1657, 7060
T Laabsilfihes 41415979 5 60, TR
Comrmaties and contingencies
Stockholders’ Equity (Deflcio:
Sertes A Profiored Secck SO0 par. 250 amd 75 million sharcs amhoreed. | 88 S 830
anad 1SS, T shares isasad and caistanding ns of Decemher 31, 2021 and 20024,
respectively I 5R9575 2,289,425
Series A-1 Preferved Siock SO0 par. 1,1 billics shares auitfarized, 68007 240 shares
issued and outsinnding as of December 31, 2021 4 A% 515 -
Series A-2 Prefirmed Stock SOOI par. 1,05 Billicn shares authonzed, O shares ssued and
ousstancling s of Decembsr 31, 2021 - -
Commen Stock 50000 par, &6 ballion and 425 mallion shares sutharized, 3 billion shares
isanied and ourstanding a5 of December 30, 2021 and 2020 respecniviely A0 HHD 301, (M0
Ackditiveal Pasd-In-Capdtal 1,378.921 SER O]
Accurnulared Dieficit {15,565 2040 (1981, 107
Toum! Steschvolnlers ' Egwine (Do) 6, T8 A53) 1,197,235
FOTAL LAABIITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY fDEFICIT) % MN1T,56 % 4, Hikh, KT

Sew aooompanying nedes o financial siolemenis.

Fed
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Rivemues
Cast of Conds Sobd
Cerasms |oxs

Urperrating Expemsis:
General and Adminasiniave
Snles and Marketing
Rooacareh amd Dheyelopimeit
T Dlperatieg Expenses
hperraling Livis

idther Inconme’Expense):
liignzen Expirad

Met Loss
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Boxabl Inc.
Statements of Operations
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

Met lass per common share — haslc amd dilabed

Weighted avernge comman shares = basic and dilubed

Balance as of December 31, 2009

Conversim of LLC 1w C-Corporalim
lssumnce of Seres A Preferred Siock
CHtering Cosls

Met Loss

Balanee as of December 30, 2020

Diecember 51, Decembser 3,
JiEL {1

3 L9555 b1 R

5513908 AL

(3358, 1Td) i

5497971 477313

1712608 183047

1.631.752 M2 432

& O00,907 1162, 742
{12,259, 16 {1163, 792}

1,324,991 -

0 (IA3E41ET) & (1,162,792}

A0, { AL 1NF}

X000, D 1 000D s0n

S pocompanying nodes o financial statements
F-5

Boxahl Inc.

Statements of Changes to Stockholders’ Equity {Deficit)
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

Additional Toasl
Plemmbaers” Serwen A Prelermad Sock Conmamin Stk Pasl-In Aceumaulited Snckhisldira”
Equity Shiures Amount Shares Amount Capital Dieficit Equity | Deficith
§  RE=GQ2) A « X . 5 <« & (BIE3LE) & 06
(HZE521) - - ERECIRECIRITEN] TR CHHE SHEDD) - -
s 1 70, Bt 750 2455 225 a = x . 1430075
- - (IELR L EN - - - - [ 14% BiHE
- - - - (1,162, 7%, { 1,162,707}
5 - 170,064,718 5 2 IHG425 F000 0000 5 B0 5 SERAOZ1 S (LURLINTE 5 10972
Achdini o] Tastal
Sz A= Preliored Slock Series A Mreleared Sleck Comamon Stock Panl-In Accumulated Stockhidchers”
Shares Aumount Shares Amoant Ehares Amoant Capital Dieficit Equity | Deficat)
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Balance as of December 31, 2030 - 5 a I T Red, T80 & X 2RG 425 L0 MO0 5 MHEGDH) & SERUIN & (LERLIOTY 2 1157 256
Steck Bazed Compensation - - . . . - RLIRITE] . TN
Issuance of Series A Preferned Seock - B 17,044 040 269 950 - - - - 205 G50
Tssunce of Seres A-1 Prefermad Stock T 240 EREERIC - - - - - - EREERVICE
(HFering Costs . (136 380) . . . . . . 1336, 589
Met Lags - - - . N - - [13.484,15M dl]é:ﬂ.lﬁ‘l’ﬁ
Hakunce as of December 31, 2021 GHOHT.240 8 498515 IERS0ERI0 5 ISHDNTS  S00A000a00d 5 I00.sDD £ LATEUIN 3 (155652643 8 (6,798 451)

Sow accoimpanymg noled D fanceal salments,

F-&
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Boxahl Inc.
Statements of Cash Flows
For the vears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

December 51, December 51,
LR | 2k
CASH FLOWS FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES:
Met Loss £ (135%4 15T 5 (1 162,792
Addjustes o Reconeile Met Loss 1o Wet Cash Provided by {Used In) Opsmanons
Depreciatim and Amarizalian 265,367 16,667
Stock Based Compensation TG0 A0 -
CHANGES IN OPERATING ASSETS AND LIABILITIES:
Accoumis Receivable e ] -
[Bepsoits om Inventory (EEE HIR) -
Inveminry 14.916,215) .
[referned Comis of Sales - SHL I
Chir Cuarrent Assels 7.221 {122.52%)
Accoumts Payabde 1,10 830 |22 ARD)
ederred Kevenis: 3120439 2. 250 183
Customer Diepasits 1,391,249 ATh, 175
Accrued Lighiliies 14058 27 4001
CMher Carrei Liakalmies | S 56 -
(Jther Long Term Liabilities 434,631 .
Acerued Inveress on Cosveniible Motes 1,133,758 -
Net Cash Provided By (Used In) (hperating Activities {1 A0E, 200 1488912
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of Property amd Equipment and Deposits [5.380,577) {41 0E0T)
Dhepaosits 1,000 {526, 0HHK)
Mol Cash Used In Investing Activities (53TR5TTH 936607
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Civrvgrmmiend Cicanl-PPF 49, 1 s -
Froceeds From Loan Fayable - Related Party = G625 AT
Payenis on Loars Payehle — Related Pariies (563,268 (555950
Proceads From Comvertible Pramassory Moebes Fayable — Mel ol Discount 10,457,583 167, Tl
(dfering Cosis (316,350 {1220
Procesds From Sale of Prefemed Swock 4,014, B0 -
Net Cash Provided By Finnncing Activities 1y 821,982 BEIH, G
Met Imerease im Cash and Cash Equivalems 17,739,165 3560361
Cash and Cash Equivalents — Beginning of Year LT, 5410 115,580
Cadl awl Cash Equivalents - End of Year -] 21,415,506 5 A6TH I
Supplemental Cash Flow Informatian:
Inberest Paxl g 11,955 5 -
Incoms Tax Paid § - b -

Man-cash Investing and Financing Activities:

Dhzposits im Escrow i 519,756 5 .
Purchase of Software with o Mote Payable g 4 50 5 .
Purchase of Egquipment in Accoumis Fayalsle % TIANE % -

Ses geosmpanying rotes fo finencial ssements
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Boxabl Inc.
Motes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

NOTE - INCORPORATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Boxabl Inc., 15 a development stage Mevada ("C7) corporation originally organized oz a Mevada hmited liabaliiy
company, on December 2, 2007, The corporation converted from a Mevada limited liability company to a Mevada
corperation on June L6, 2020, The financial statements of Boxabl Inc., {which may be referred to as the "Company™,
“Boxabl”, “we", "us™ or “our”) arc prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (“GAAPT)E The Company's headguarters are in Los Vegas, Nevada,

Boxabl Inc., (which may refer to its product as “boxes”, “casita™, “"ADU” or “Alternative Dwelling Unit™) is im the
process of bullding & new type of modular box with the help of modern manufacturing processes. Its product will
result in superior, higher quality residential and commercial buildings in half the tme and half the cost, by resolving
the problems of labor shorages and using approximately 80% less building material. The Company has also
developed patented pending shipping technology, which will help it serve large geographic areas from one factory.
This innowation allows the Company to serve the entire USA and even international markets,

NOTE 2 ~ GOING CONCERN

The Company incurred a net loss of 312,794,157 during the year ended December 31, 2021 and currently has
limited revenues, which creates substantial doubt of its ability (o continue as a going concern.

The Company expects to obtain funding through debt and equity placement offerings uniil it consistently achieves
positive cash flows from operations. The continuing viability of the Company and its ability fo continue as a going
concern 15 dependent on the Company being successful in its continued efforts in growing its revenue and/or
acces=ing additonal sources of capital. Management’s plan to address this need mcludes, (a) contimued exercise of
tight conirols o conserve cash, and (b) obtaining additional equity financing, There are no assurances that our plans
will be successful. See Notes 7 and 9 for additional information and amounts raised regarding the Company’s
offerings.

The accompanying fnancial statemenis do ned include any adjustmeniz that might be necessary if the Company is
unable 1o continue as & going concerm.

NOTE 3-5UMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with GAAP and are expressed in U5,
dollars. The Company’s fiscal year end 1s December 31.

Financials Statements

Stockholders” equity section of the Balance Shoeet Series A-1 Preferred stock and Common siock shares issucd now
reflects the retroactive carry back of the 1-to- 10 stock split. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles requires all
stock Tgures disclosed on comparative fnancial statements o retroactively reflect any stock splits, Senes A
Preferred stock, Series A-1 Preferred stock, and Common stock issued and outstanding as of Decembser 31, 2021 and
2021}, has been changed to conform o siock split.

F-#
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Boxabl Inc.
Motes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Use of Estimabes

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management 0 make estimates and
assumpdions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent asseis and
liabilitics at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses dunng the
reporting periedd. The Company bases its estimates and assumptions on current facts, histonical experience, and
varous other factors that it believes 1o be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for
making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities and the accrual of costs and expenses that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The actual results expenienced by the Company may differ materially and
adversely from the Company s estimates. To the extent there are matenal differences between the estimates and the
actual resulis, future resulis of operations will be aflected.

Risks and Uncertainties

The Company’s business and operations are sensitive o general business and economic conditions mn the U5, and
worldwide along with logal, state, and federal governmental policy decizions. A host of Bctors beyvond the
Company’™s control could cawse fluctuations in these conditions, Adverse conditions may include; recession,
downtum or otherwise, government policics. These adverse conditions could affect the Company’™s financial
condition and the results of 1ts operations.

On Janwary 20, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the coronavirus outhreak a “Public Health Emergency
of International Concern™ and on March 10, 2020, declared it to be a pandemic. Actions taken around the world to
help mitigate the spread of the coronavires include restrictions on travel, and quarantines in certain areas, and forced
closures for certain types of public ploces and businesses. The coronavirus and actions faken to mitigate 1t have had
and are expected o continue 10 have an adverse impact on the economic and Nnancial markets of many countries,
including the geographical area in which the Company operates, Measures taken by various governments to contain
the virus have affected coonomic activity. We have taken a several measures to monitor and mitigate the effects of
COVID-19, such as safety and health measures for our stakeholders and securing the supply of material that are
essential to our production process, Al this siage, the impact on our business and results has not been significant, We
do expect a reduction in the supply of goods and materials from our foreign suppliers. We will continue 1o follow the
various government pelicies and advice, and, in parallel, we will do eur wtrmost to continue our operations in the best
and safest way possible without jeopardizing the health of our stakeholders. The COVID-19 Coronavinus caused
ravised prices and supply chain ssees that slowed down our production and caused us 10 have 0 regquest o new
delivery date on the ADS order which was granted, There were no other serious impacts,

Decrensed demand im the housing ndustry would adversely affect our business. Demand for mew housing
construction 15 ted o the brosder economy and factors ouiside the Company s control. Should factors such as the
COVID-19 pandemic resull in continued loss of general economic activity, we would experience a slower growth
rate in demand for our Boxes,

Fuir ¥alue of Financial Instruments

Fair valwe is defined as the exchange price that would be recerved for an asset or pand (o transfer a lability (an exit
price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants as of the messurement date. Applicable accounting guidance provides an cstablished hierarchy for
inputs used In messuring fair value that maximizes the use of observable inputs and mimimizes the use of
unobservable inpuis by requiring that the most observable inpuis be used when available, Observable inpuls are
inpuis that markef participanis would use in valuing the asset or liability and are developed based on market data
obtained from sources independent of the Company. Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the Company’s
assumpiions about the factors that market participants would use in valuing the asset or liabaliey.

F-9
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Boxabl Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31. 2021 and 2020

There are three levels of inputs that may be used 1o measure fair value:

Level 1 — Observable inputs that reflect quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilitics in
petive markets,

Level 2 — Include other inputs that are directly or indirectly observable in the marketplace,
Level 3 — Unobservable inputs which are supported by little or no market activity,

The fair value hierarchy also requires an enfity to maximize the use of observable inpuis and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs when measuring fair value.

Famr-value estimates dizoussed herein are based upon certain market assumptions and pertinent information available
to management as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, The respective carrving value of certain on-balance-sheet
financial instruments approximated their fair values.

Cash and Cash Equivalenis
The Company considers all highly liquid instruments with a maturity of three months or less af the time of issuance
1 be cash equivalents.

Accounts Heceivable

Account Beceivable are stated at the amount management expects (o collect on balances cutstanding at year -end,
The Company uses the allowance method for uncollectable accounts receivable, The allowance for doubifil

accounts 15 based on management’s evaluation of outstanding accounts receivable at the end of the year. As of
December 31, 2021, an allowance was not reguired.

Inventory

[nventory consists of raw matenals, work in progress, and finished goods and 15 valued at the lower of cost or net
realized value with the cost determined using the weighted average methed. Damaged and obsolete inventory are
valued based on management’s best estimate and any difference charged 0 expense. Az of December 31, 2021,
inventory consisted primarily of raw materials,

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated af cost. Depreciation s compuied uvsing the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of approximately five vears. Expenditures for maintenance, repairs, and minor improverments
are charged fo expense as incurred. Major improvements with economic lives greater than one year are capitalized.
Leaschold improvements will be depreciated over the lesser of the lease term or the estimated vseful life.

Long-Lived Assels
The Company reviews the carrying values of its long-lived assets for possible impairment whenever events or

changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asscis may not be recoverable. No impairment
charges were recorded for the yvears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020,

F-100
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Boxabl Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Revenue Recognition

The Company adopted Accounting Standards Update (“ASU™) 2004-09, Revenwe from Contracts with Customers,
and 1= related amendments (collectively known as “ASC 606™), effective January 1, 2009 using the modifed
retrospective transition approach applied w all contracis, Therefore, the reported results for the vears ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020 reflect the application of ASC 606, Management determined that there were no
retroactive adjusiments necessary to revenue recognition upon the adoption of the ASU 2014-19 In addition, the
adoption of the ASU did not have an impact on operations and financial staterments. The Company determines
revenug recognition through the following sieps;

- Identification of a contract with a customer.
- Identification of the performance obligations in the contract.

Determination of the ransaction price,

Allecation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract.
- Recopnition of revenue when or as the performance obligations are satisfied.

Revenues are recognized when performance obligations are satisfied through the transfer of promised goods (o the
Company’s customers, Control transfers upon shipment of product and when the title has been passed to the
customers. This includes the transfer of legal nitle, physical possession, the nsk and rewards of ownership, and
customer acceplance. Revenue 15 recorded net of sales tax collected from customers on behalf of taxing authorities,
allowance for estimated retums, chargebacks, and markdowns based wpon management's estimates and the
Company’s historical expenience, The Company records a liability for deposits for future products, The liability is
relieved, and revenue is recognized once the revenue recognition criteria is met.

In September 2020, the Company signed two purchase agreements with a customer to sell 156 Casitas Units for a
total contract price of 39,245,574, The Company received a progress pavment from the customer of 52,346,893 in
December 20020, $2,275,892 in February 2021, and 32,311,394 in October 2021,

The Company debvered 33 uwnits of Casitos by December 31, 2021, The Company mvoiced the purchaser for
21955795 as wial sales and recorded B48E94%9 a2 accounis receivable afier applyving 31,466,846 of advance
payment. The balance of advance payment as of December 31, 2021 in the amount of 35467 332 is reflected as
deferred revenue.

The Company has received 51,767,424 in customer deposits for over 3,360 Boxabl units as of December 31, 2021,
The balance of customer deposits as of December 31, 2020 was 3376,175. The amounts are reflected as customer
deposits as the deposit does not guarantes a sales confract and 15 tandem to a reservation. The customer can request a
refund of the deposit until a sale agreement 15 executed.

Caost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold consists primanly of the cost of preducts wsed in the production of the Company’s finished
products, shipping, the related labor, and overhead charges associated with that production. For 2020, the cost of
goods sold incurred more than revenwes recorded in connection with the confract are classified as research and
development as those were determined o be cosis associated with improving the Company™s process, in tandem o a
prototype.

F-11
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Boxabl Inc.
Motes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

In the second hall of Gctober 2021, the Company began production of Casitas. The Company meurred much higher
pm-du'.,uun cosis due o varions factors, including the following:
Inefficiencies due o new machinery and newness of product and procedures which required significant
training of the workforee.
The one-shift production capacity of the factory 15 two per day. The actual units produced were 4 n
Oipber, 13 in Movember, and 18 in December, In order fe caich up with iis delivery obligation under the
sales contract, the Company hired additional owtside Tabor and paid overtime and double time shifis,
Tight skilled labor market which caused higher labor rate.
Supply chain delivery 1ssues which caused the purchase of several items of matenal from local vendors
with a substantially higher price.

Advertising and Promotion
Advertising and promotion are expensed as mcurred. Advertising and promotion expense for the vears ended
December 31,2021 and 2020 amounted (o approximately S3E2.000 and S183,000, respectively, which 15 meluded in
sales and marketing expense,

Research and Development

Research and development costs consisting of design, matenals, consultants related fo prototype and process
improvements and developmenis are expensed as incurred. Total research and development cosis for the vear ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020 are 32,631,752 and 5302 431, respectively.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Fimancial instruments that potentially expose the Company 1o a concentration of credit risk consist primarily of cash
and cash cguivalents. Cash and cash equivalents are mamntamed at high quality financial institutions.  During the
vears, the Company exceeded the Federal Deposit [nsurance Corporation (FDICY himot. The Company has not
experienced any losses with respect 1o 118 cash balances, Based upon assessment of the fnancial condition of these
institutions, management helieves that the risk of logs of any uninsured amounts is minimal

Clstomers:

[n 2021 and 2020, the Company sold 1o one customer each vear, Account receivable as of December 31, 2021 wasz
related o only one customer. For 2022, the Company finished delivering the produect 1o the 2021 customer and have
signed purchase orders with two new customers. Sce Note 9 — Subscquent Events.

faventory:

The Company imports a substantial part of its materials from overseas vendors: mainly China. Conseguently, the
Company’s ability to purchase and the costs of its products are subject to political and economic situations, both in
the United States and abroad. In 2021, approximately 13.3%, 12.9%%, and 9.2% was purchased from its three highest
vendors, The Company maintains that the loss of one or more vendors would not have o material impact on the
Company’s operalions a3 replacements could be identfied.

Income Taxes

The Company was formed as o Limited hability Company in Nevada for which the Company’s policy was to record
distrbutions o oats members related o the member’s federal and state income taxes thatl are attributable 1o the net
income of the Company, The Company records such distributions when they are declared and made to the member.
Federal and state income tax regulations require that the income or loss of a limited Lability Company be included in
the tax returns of the members; accordingly, there are no labilities or provisions for income taxes recorded in the
accompanying Nmancial statements for the vear ended December 31, 2020,

F-12
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Boxabl Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

On June 16, 2020, the Company converted 0 a Nevada Corporation. The conversion was tax-free under Internal
Revenue Code, which is typically defined as a mere change in identity, form, or place of organization. Management
elected o terminate the LLC election effective June 15, 2020 and the Company will operaie for tax purposes as a O
corporation from that date forward,

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (" ASC™) Topic 740,
fncomme Taves, ASC 740 requires o company o use the asset and hability method of accounting for income taxes,
whereby deferred fax asseis are recognized for deductible temporary differences, and deferred tax liabilities are
recognized for taxable temporary differences. Temporary differences are the differences between the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when,
in the opinion of management, 1t 15 more likely than not that some portion, or all, the deferred tax assets will not be
realized. Deferred s assets and liabilities are adjosted for the effecis of chamges in tax laws and rates on the date of
enactment.

Tax positions mitially must be recognized in the financial statements when it 1s more likely than not the position will
be sustained upon examination by the fax authoriies, Such fax positions imitally and subsequently are o be
measured at the largest amount of tax benefit that has a greater than 50F% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate
settlement with the tax authority, assuming full knowledge of the position and relevant facts.

Al December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company evaluated 115 net deferred tax assets of 52,616470 and 167,794,
respectively, which conzisted primarily of net operating loss carry forwards and defermined a full valwation
allowance was appropriate.

Ab December 3, 2021, the Company's gross net operating loss (“NOL™) carry forward was 512,512,604, which
originated from losses from June 15, 2020 forward, MOLs originating in 2020 and subsequent can be carried
forward indefinitely. The difference between the statutory rate of 21% and the effective fax rate is due to a full
valuation allowance on deferred tax assets and permanent differences due to non-deductible interest expense.

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company had no unceriain iax positions that qualily for either recognition
or disclosure in the financial statements. The Company will recognize future accrued interest and penalties related
to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense if incurred. The Company’™s tax return from 2018 forward is
open o federal and state tax examination.  As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, there were no ongoing tax
EXAMInANons.

Deferred Offering Costs

Incremental costs directly associated with the offering of securities are deferred and charped against the gross
proceeds of the offering upon completion. During the yvears ended December 21, 2021 and 2020, cosiz associated
with the Company's offerings totalled 5339 839 and 5149 200 which are netted against the related proceeds within
stockholders” equity (deficit), respectively, The Company had 513,000 of deferred offering costs, included in the
non-current asset section, on the accompanying balance sheets at December 31, 2021 and 2020 related to its
Begulation A offering which was launched in 2022,

Net Loss per Share

Net enmings or loss per share is computed by dividing net income or loss by the weighted-average number of
revised shares oulstanding during the penod, excluding shares subject o redemption or forfeiture. The Company
presents basic and diluted net earnings of loss per share, Diluted net earnings of loss per share reflect the actual
weighted average of common shares issued and ouistanding during the period, adjusted for potentially dilutive
securities outstanding, Potentially dilutive securitics are excluded from the computation of the diluted net loss per
share if their inclusion would be anti-dilutive. As all potentially dilutive securities are anti-dilutive as of December
31, 2020 and 2020, dilwted net logs per shane 12 the same as basic net loss per share Tor each yvear, As of December
A1, 2021 and 2020, the Company’s potentially dilutive instruments were the convertible promissory notes for which
a conversion price had not been established and the Senes A and Senies A-1 preferred stock tor which s
contingently convertible.
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Boxahl Ine.

Notes o Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Beard ("FASB™) issued Accounting Standards Update
(CASU™) 2006-02, Leases (Topie B42). This ASU requires a lessee to recognize a nght-of-use asset and a lease
habality under maost operating leases in s balance sheet. Due (o the FASE exienzion in June 2020, the gudance 15
effective for annual and quarterly periods beginning afier December 15, 2021, Management estimates the adoption
of the lease standard will have a material effect on the financial statements for which the Company is still
determiming the impact.

Management does nod believe that any other recently isswed, but nof vet effective, accounting standands could have a
material effect on the accompanying financial statements, As new accounting pronguncements are issued, the
Company will adopt those that are applicable under the circumstances.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company uses ASC TI8 for siock-based compensation. Compensation for all stock-based awards, including
stock options and restricted stock, 15 measured at fair value on the date of grant and recognized over the associated
vesting penods. The fair value of stock options s estimated on the date of grant using a Black-Scholes model. The
fair value of restricled siock awards is estimated on the date of the grant based on the Tair value of the Company's
underlying common stock, The Company recognizes compensation expense for stock options and restricted stock
awards on a straight-line basis over the associated service or vesting periods.

Determuning the grant date far value of options using the Black-Scholes option=pricing model requires management
1o make assumptions and judgments, These estimates involve inberent uncerfainties and, if different assumptions
had been used, stock-based compensation expense could have boen materially different from the amounts recorded.

NOTE 4 - FROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
The Company’s property and equipment consist of the following amounis as of December 31, 2021 and 2020

December 31, 2021 Dhecember 31, 2020

Machinery, Equipment, and Furniture 5 35254106 5 33330
Leasehold Improvements 1,671,686
Technology Equipment and Software 207983

5,405 085 H3i 316

Less: Accumulated Depreciation (295451 (30,0043

3 5, 108 604 5 53232

As of Decermnber 301, 2020 and 2020, the Company paid 5631041 and 54100606, respectively Tor deposits on
equipment. The total amount is recorded as Deposits on Equipment on the balance sheet,

During the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company recognized 5265367 and 316,667 in
depreciation expense, respectively,

F-14

hitpsfwww sec, gov/ Archives/edgar/data/ T8 1GR3 7000 10969 22001 72 2hox_ 1k him



BRLAL, 1249 PM

htrpswww sec goviArchives/edgar'datal |8 16037000 1096906 22001 72 2/box_ 1K him

Boxabl Inc.
Notes o Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

NOTE 5- DEBRT

Luoan Payable to Officers

The Company executed a promizsory node 1o the Company’s majorily shareholder and CEO subsequent 1o the year
ended December 31, 2020, o formalize the terms, The proceeds, for which all were received in 2020, were used for
operations and manufacturing three casita profotypes. The principal balance outstanding bears a simple interest rafe
at the annual “prime rate” published by the Wall Street Journal (3.25% at December 31, 20200 plus one percent
(0%, Interest shall accrue on the entire principal sum of this promissory note beginning Janvary 1, 2021, The note
wis patid in full in Awgust 2021,

PFPF Loan
In March 2021, the Company obimined o PPP loan in the amount of 349,166, The loan was forgiven in 2022,

Convertible Notes Payable

On November 17, 2020, the Company commenced an offering of convertible promissory notes pursuant to Bule
S06(c) Begulation [, secking to raise up to S50,000,000 of convertible promissory notes. Simple interest will accrue
on an annual rate of 100 per annum, 15 the Company issees secuntes, under the anticipated Begulaton A
offering, the convertible promissory notes and accrued interest will automatically convert into shares offered under
that offering at a conversion price ranging from 50-90% of the per share price paid by the purchasers of such equity
securities in the offering. The conversion discount rates are based on timing and amount of the convertible
promissory noles. IF the debt notes have not been previously converted, principle and unpaid accrued interest will
be due and pavable at March 31, 2023, A beneficial conversion feature was nod recorded as the convertible
promissory notes are contingently convertible. In addition, costs incurred in connection with obtaining the
convertible promissory notes were insignificant and recorded as interest expense. As of December 31, 2021 and
2020, the gross amount of convertible promissory notes was 330,923,075 and 5167700, respectively, in convertible
promissory notes, Subsequent o December 31, 2021, the total amount of proceeds under convertible promissory
increased o 344,851,638 due to additional borrowings, an increase of 313,926,583,

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company had accrved interest of $1,133.795 and 50, respectively, for all
outsianding convertible notes,

On April 1, 2022, in connection with the Company's launch of their Regulation A offering, all convertible
promissory notes were converted anto 783,297 135 Series A-1 Preferred stock, representing 344,351,658 of face
valwe and 32,044,430 of accrued interest, The Company i g1l determining the impact on the financial statemenis as
the convertible promissory nodes were converted at prices which were significantly lower than similar securities
being sold at the same time. The Company expects to recond & significant amount of interest expense in 2022 related
to this conversion.

NOTE 6 — RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a contract with the majority sharcholder and CEOD to share certain costs related to office space,
support stafT, and consultancy services,

The Company entered into an exclusive license agreement with Build TP LLC, an entity controlled by the
Company’s majority sharcholder and CEOQ. Under the terms of the agreement, Build IP LLC has agreed to license its
structure, transport, and trademark patents 0 the Company. Quarterly rovalty payments of 1% are due on rovalty-
bearing sales, As of December 31, 2021, 519558 has been recorded as royvalty expensze in the accompanying
financial statements which is 1% of the sales,

See Mote 5 and 7 for additional related party transactions.
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Boxabl Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

NOTE 7T-5TOCKHOLDERS EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Preferved and Common Stack

The Company converted o a C-Corporation in the state of Nevada on June 16, 2020, In conjunction with the
conversion, the Company authorized the issuance of 4.25 billion shares of common stock with a par value of
2000001 and 750 million shares of preferred stock with a par value of 3000001, The Company initally designated
all shares of preferred siock as “Series A Preferred Stock”, see below for rights and preferences,

On June 16, 2020, 3 billion common shares were issued to the Company’s two stockholders in exchange for their
membership interests i Boxabl, LLC.

On February 24, 2021, the Company filed an amendment to the articles of incorporation which increased the number
of authorized preferred shares to B35 million, for which 202,516,930 and 647 483,020 shares {post split effected)
were designated as Series A Preferred Stock and Series A-1 Preferred Stock, respectively,

On November 19, 2021, the Board of Direcior decided to increase the number of shares o the following: 6.6 hillion
shares of Common Stock of 300001 par value, 230 million shares of Series A Preferred Stock of 500001 par
vilue, 1.1 billion shares of Senes A-1 Preferred Stock of 3000001 par value, 1.15 billion shares of Senes A-2
Preferred Stock of 3000001 par value, and 200 million shares of unclassified Preferred Stock of 80000001 par value,
Total of increased awthorized shares is 10 billion, The balance sheet and notes in this report are reflected
retroactively as discussed here.

The Seres A Preferred Stock has the Tollowing preferences:

Holders of Series A Preferred Stock are not entitled to any voting rights. Shares of Series A preferred stock ane
convertible o common stock on a one for one basis upon the Company’s 1PO or upon a Regulation A capital raise.
[n the event of any voluntary or inveluntary hguidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation, payment shall
be made o the holders of Series A Preferred Siock before payment is made 1o any holders of common stock, The
Company’s Stockholders” Agreement includes a contractual call right for the majority common stock shareholders
o repurchase the shares of the investors. If the call right 15 exercised, investors would be required o sell their shares
at the fair market price established by an independent valuation service or investment bank.

The Series A-1 Preferred Stock has the following preferences:

Holders of Senes A-1 Preferred Stock are not entitled o any voting rights. Shares of Senes A-1 Preferred Stock are
convertible o commen stock on a one for one basis upon the Company’s 1P or upon a Begulation A capital raise,
In the event of any voluntary or inveluntary liguidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation, payment shall
be made to the holders of Series A-1 Preferred Stock before payment is made @0 any holders of common stock. The
Company’s Stockholders” Agreement includes a contractual call right for the majority common stock sharcholders
o repurchase the shares of the mvestors. 17 the call mght 15 exercised, mvestors would be regquired to sell therr shares
an the fair market price established by an independent valuation service or investment bank,
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Boxabl Ine.
Mistes (0 Financial Statements
December 31. 2021 and 2020

The Series A-2 Preferred Stock has the following preferences:

Holders of Senes A-2 Preferred Stock are not entitled o any voting rights. Shares of Senies A-2 Preferred Stock are
convertible to common stock on a one for one basis upon the Company’s [PO or upon a Begulation A capital rise.
I the event of any voluntary or inveluniary liguidation, dizssoluiion or winding up of the Corporation, paymeni shall
be made 1o the holders of Series A-2 Preferred Stock before payment is made 1o any holders of common stock, The
Company’s Stockholders” Agreement includes a contractual call right for the majority common stock sharcholders
to repurchase the shares of the mvestors. I the call nght 15 exercised, mvestors would be regquired to sell therr shares
al the Tair market price established by an imdependent valuation service or imvestiment bank.,

The "Series A Original Issue Price” shall mean 30017 per share, and the “Series A-1 Original Issue Price”™ shall
mean 30.07% per share, in cach case subject to appropriate adjustment in the event of any stock dividend, stock split,
combination or other similar recapitalization with respect to the Series A Preferred Stock or the Series A-1 Prefemed
Siock, as the case may be,

The Company’s REegulation CF and Regulation D capital rases resulted innet proceeds of 52,022,425 and the
issnance of 155,158,910 Series A Preferred Stock at S00014 per share during the vear ended Decembser 31, 2020,

On Decemnber 2, 2020, the Company was offering up o 51,000,006 worth of Series A Preferred Stock pursuant to
Bection HaM2) to investors with established, pre-existing relationships to the Company at a price of 50017 per
share, The capital ruise resulted in procesds of 2267000 and the issuance of 15,705,380 Senes A Preferred Stock at
20007 per share as of December 31, 2020, The Company received an additional 5299950 in proceeds and the
issuance of 17,044,040 Series A Preferred Siock at 30,017 per share as of December 31, 2021,

On December 13, 2020, the Company engaged a broker dealer to perform admimistrative and compliance related
functions in connection with the Company pending Regulation A capuital raise of up o 349.500,000. No
underwriting or placement agent services will be provided. As compensation for the services, the Company has
agreed to pay the broker dealer a commission equal to 1% of the amount raised in the offering to support the offering
on all newly invested funds after the 1ssuance of @ Mo Objection Letter by FINEA.

On October 17, 2020, the Company entered info an exclusive placement agency agreement, Under the terms of the
agrecment the Company is to pay 7.5% of the aggregate subscription procceds for equity sold under the ongoing
offerings including the pending Regulation A offering. In December 2020, the Company paid 513,000, and was
recorded in other assets as deferred offening costs in the sccompanying balance sheet as of December 31, 2020,

On May 3, 2021, the Company offered up to 33,930,000 in Series A-1 Preferred Stock at 30071 with a minimunn
target amount of 510,00,

Starting 2022, the Company offered Series A-2 Preferred shares sold for S0080 under Regulation A and under
Regulation I in the following brackets - S20,000 - 30,76 31060000 - 50,72 51,000,008 - 500658 510,000,006 - 50.64
S 1000, 00,0040 - S00.60.

On March 31, 2022, the Company has been qualified 1o raise up 1o 568.300,000 pursuant o Begulation A offering.
The Company is offering a maximum of 85,623 000 shares of its Series A-2 Preferred Stock at a price of 30,80 per
share on a “'best-efforts™ basis, as well as up to 35,714,290 shares of its Series A Preferred Stock at a price of 50.014
per share. The Company has set a minimum of 33,000,000 in gross procesds to be received prior to the occurrence
of any closing for Senes A-2 Preferred Stock, As of July 24, 2022, the Company has sold 48430832 Preferred
Series A-2 shares under Regulation A offering for 338744606 and 17,716,200 Preferred Series A-2 for
313,316,656 under Regulation [ In addition, the Company has sold 1,278,900 Serics A shares for 517,905 and
S04 900 Series A-1 shares for 78,597,
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Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Stock Incentive Flan

In 2021, the Company’s board of directors authorized the 2021 Stock Option Plan which allows for the 1ssuance of
options o purchase 150000000 shares of the Company™s common stock, Dunng the yvear ended December 31,
2021, vhe Company granted stock options o purchase 81,075.300 shares of common stock, of which 44,226,100
vested immediately upon issuance. The remainder vest over a period of 36 months. The fair values of options
granted was approximately 51,816,140 on the date of grant. The options have an exercise price of 50.07 and expire
10 years from date of 1ssuance,

As of December 31, 2021, there were 68,924,700 shares available for issuance under the Equity Incentive Plan,

Duning the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company valued the options using the Black-Scholes pricing model
on the date of grant using the following assumptions:

Expected life (vears) 5050
Risk-free inberest rate 207
Expected valatility 39.77%
Annual dividend vield 0.0%%

Determuning the appropriate fair value of stock-based awards requires the input of subjective assumptions, including
the fair value of the Company's common stock, and for stock options, the expected hife of the option, and expected
stock price volatility, The Company uses the Black-Scholes oplion pricing model 1o value s stock oplion awards,
The assumptions used in calculating the fair value of stock-based awards represent management's best estimates and
involve inherent uncertaintics and the application of management'’s judgment. As a result, if factors change and
management uses different assumptions, stock-based compensation expense could be matenally different for future
awirds,

The Company uses the following imputs when valuating stock-based awards. The expected life of employee stock
options wias cstimated using the “simplified method,” as the Company has no historical information to develop
reasonable expectations about future exercise patterns and employment duration Tor its stock option grants, The
simplified method is based on the average of the vesting iranches and the contractual life of cach grant, The
expected life of awards that vest immediately wse the contraciual maturity since they are vested when issued. For
stock price volatility, the Company uses public company compatibles and historical private placement data as a basis
for s expected volatility o calculate the fur value of opton granis. The nsk-free mterest rate 15 based on U5,
Treasury notes with a term approximaning the expected life of the option at the grant-date,

The Company recognizes stock option forfentures as they occur as there 15 insufficient historical data (o accurately
determine future forferture rates,

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company recognized 5790000 of stock compensation expense
related o stock options which 1s included within gencral and admimistrative expenses, Future stock option
compensation expense related to these options to be recognized 15 51,026,140 which is expected to be expensed over
the remaining vesting perod of 33 months. The amount of future stock=based compensation expense could be
affected by any future option grants or by any forfeitures.
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NOTE § - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Significant Contracts

In September 2020, the Company signed two parchase agreements with a cosfomer to sell 156 Casitas Units, for a
tptal contract price of 39,245, 574, The 136 Casitas are to be delivered upon completion. The Company has received
three progress payments as of December 21, 2021, The first progress payment of $2.346, 893 was received in
December 2020, The second progress payment of 82,275,802 was received in February 2021, within the 120-day
ferms of the purchase order acceptance, The third progress payment in the amount of 32,311,394 was received in
October 2021 and the remaining amount will be paid based on number of units to be delivered. The Company
delivered 33 units by December 31, 2021 and the rest before June 1, 2022, The Company received in full the balance
on sules confract.

Operating Lease

On December 29, 2020, the Company signed a 65-month lease for their 173,000 sq ft. factory facility, commencing
on May 1, 2021, As of December 31, 2020, a 3525000 secunty deposit, first month’s rent, $87,229, and first-
month’s Tenant's Percentage of Operating Expense Fees (CAM) 519,109, have been paid o the landlord, The
monthly CAM will vary from moenth 1o month, The first month CAM will begin on May 1, 2021, The Company’s
first five (3) months have been abated by the landlord and the Comparey will begin making monthly rent payvmenis
on October 1, 2021, Kents mcrease by 3% annually. Todal rent expense for the vear ended December 31, 2021 was
2003,214. As of December 31, 2021, the Company has deferred rent hability of 3434631 due to the straght lining
of rent expense.

The following table summarizes the Company’s future minimum commitment under the non-cancellable operating
lease agreements as of December 31, 2021,

Drate Total
2022 5 LO7T.074
2023 1,100 3546
2024 1,142,068
2025 [, 176,948
2026 Sn,221
Totals 5 5412297

Litigation

There are no legal proceedings, which the Company believes will have a maferial adverse effect on itz financial
position.
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NOTE 9-SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
See Motes 5 and 7 for additional subsequent events.

Orperating Lease

On June 10, 2022, the Company signed a 73-month lease for a 132,960 sq ft warchouse, commencing the carlier of
a1 30 davs after substantial completion of tenant work by the landlord or (b) fenant commencing operation n the
butlding. Al present, management believe